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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen
Town of Bristol
Bristol, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund,
and aggregate remaining fund inforrnation of the Town of Bristol as of and for the year ended December 31,2020, and the

related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Manngement's Responsibility for tlre Finuncial Stntements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

A uditor's Respons ibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica, and the standards applicable to financial audits

contained inGoyernment AuditingStandards, issued by the Cornptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the arnounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements refered to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the Town
of Bristol, as of Deceryrber 31,2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, the respective budgetary comparison
for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Otlter Mntters

Required Supplementary Information - Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that

the following be presented to supplement the basic financial statements:

. Managernent's Discussion and Analysis,
r Schedule of the Town's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability,
. Schedule of Town Corrtributions Pensions,
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. Schedule of the Town's Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability,
r Schedule of Town Contributions - Other Posternployment Benefits,
. Schedule of Changes in the Town's Total Other Posternployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios, and

o Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Such infonnation, although not a parl of the basic financial staterxents, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards

Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial staternents in an appropriate

operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied cet'tain lirnited procedures to the required supplementary

infonnation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the inforrnation and comparing the infonnation for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the

basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information- Our audit was conducted for the puryose of forrning opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Bristol's basic financial staternents. The combining and individual fund schedules are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)

Paft200, Uniform Administrative Requirentents, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards and is also not a

required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic

financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and ceftain additional procedures, including cornparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and

other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual fund schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statemerlts as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Governntent Auditing Standords

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September l, 2021 on our

consideration of the Town of Bristol's intelnal control over financial reporting and on ourtests of its with cettain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, glant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on

internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repoft is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance

with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Bristol's internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

Srdn 0et (h

Septernber 1,2021 PLODZIK & SANDERSON
Professional Association
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Town of Bristol, New Hampshire
Management's Discussion and Analysis

As managernent of the Town of Bristol, New Harnpshire, we offer readers this rrarrative overview
and arralysis of the financial activities of the Town of Bristol for the year ended Decernber 31,

2020.

A. OVERVIEW OF THtr FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial
statements. The Town's basic financial statenrents include four components:

L Government-wide financial statements.
2. Fund financial statements.
3. Notes to the basic firrancial statements.
4. Required supplementary informatior-r.

This report also contains other supplementary inforrnation in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the Town's finances irr a manner like most private-sector business.

The Staternent of Net Position presents information on all the Town's assets, liabilities, and

deferred outflows/inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the Town is irnproving or deterioratirtg.

The Statement of Activities presents infonnation showing how the Town's net position changed

during the most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as sooll as the underlying
event giving rise to change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues

and expenses are repofted in this statement for some iterns that will only result in cash flows in
future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the governnrent-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovenrnental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees

and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities include general government,
public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, health, welfare, culture and recreation,
conservation and economic developrnent. The business-type activities include water and

wastewater activ ities.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accolrnts that is used to maintain control over resources that have

been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and

demonstrate corlpliance with finance-related legal reqLrirements. All the funds can be divided
into three categories: governrlental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
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Governmental Funds: Goverrrnrental funds are used to accourtt for essenti ally the sanre

functions reported as govenrmental activities in the governrnent-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statentents, governtnental fund financial
statel.nents focns on the near-ternr inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on

balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful
in evaluating a governmertt's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of tlie government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governnrental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's llear-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governrnental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between the governmental funds and governmental activities.

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the general, water and sewer funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this
budget. Budgetary comparison statements are not provided for the water and sewer funds as they
are considered proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds: Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of comparison
operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows.

Enterprise funds are used to repoft activity for which a fee is charged to external users, and must
be used when one of the following criteria are met: (1) activity is financed with debt that is
secured solely by a pledge of the uet revenues from fees and charges, (2) laws or regulations
require the activity's costs of providing services be recovered with fees and charges, and (3) the
pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its costs, including
capital costs such as depreciation or debt service. The primary focus on these criteria is on fees
charged to external users. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as

business-type activities in the government-wide finartcial statements, only in more detail.
Specifically, enterprise funds are used to accollnt for water and wastewater operations, which are

rnajor funds.

Fiduciar-v Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the govenrment-wide
financial statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the Town's
own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary
funds.

Notes to Financial Statements

Tlre notes provide additional infonnation that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and the fund financial statetnents.
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Town of Bristol, New Hampshire
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Other Information

In addition to tlre basic financial statenrents and acconrpanying uotes, this report also presettts

certain required supplernentary infbrmation which is required to be disclosed by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

B. FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

As of the close of the curreut year, the total assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and

deferred inflows by $10,316,314 (i.e., net position), a change of $1,436,364 in comparison to the
prior year.

As of the close of tlre current year, governmental funds reporled ending fund balances of
$2,783,122, a change of ($3 14,5 83) in comparison to the prior year.

At the end ofthe curreut year, nnassigned fund balance for the general fund was

$113,847, a change of ($3,937) in comparison of the prior year.

GOVBRNMBNT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

Net position of the Town of Bristol as of December 31, 2020, are as follows

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
2020 2019 Change YoChange

Current and other assets

Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

Long-term liabilities outstanding

Other liabilities

Restricted net position

Unrestricted net position

13,718,032 11,287 11) 2,490,760 22.01%

977,518 177.90Vo

$3,924,511

9,853,521

$2,846,584

8,440,688

$ 1,011 ,921

1,412,833

31.87%

16.14%

Deferred outflows of resources 1,526,994 549,466

1,186,721

1,718,030

5,904,912
892,313

1,2g l,g0g
825,657

21.7 t%
92.52%

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources 252,301 319,545 (127,244)

Net investrnent in capital assets 8,730,678 1,063,863 1,666,815

904 151 6,797,285 2,101,466 31.00%

254,384
(2,831,098)

238,161
(2,642,116)

16,223
(194,982)

-33.53Yo

23.6004

6.81%
138%

s 6,141,964 $4,659,908

5

Total net position $ 1,488,056 3t.930



Town of Bristol, New Hampshire
Management's Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIV]TI ES

2020 2019

s2,370,894

3,450,941

$ 2,310,480

3,619,593

$ 60,474

(168,646)

Change
%

Change

2.61%

-4.66%

Deferred outflows of resources 141.341

Current and other assets

Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

Long-term liabilities outstanding

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Net investrnent in capital assets

Unrestricted net position

5,821,841 5,930,013 (108,172) -1.82%

53,019 94,322 111.90%

1,143,946

34,423

1,706,891

20,041

37,055

14,376

2.11%

1t.71%

1:778,369 1,126,938 51,431 2.98%

22,463 36,052 (13,589) -37.69%

2,302,109

1,866,241

2,354,945

1,865,197

(52,126)

1,044

-2.23%

0.05%

Total net position $4,168,350 $4,220,042 ($51,692) t.22%

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. As the close of the most recentyear, total net position was

$10,316,314, a change of $1,436,364 from the prior year.

The largest portion of net position, $l1,032,787 reflects our investment in capital assets

(e.g.), land buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. These capital assets are sued to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it

6



Town of Bristol, New Hampshire
Managementts Discussion and Analysis

should be noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided fi'om other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities

An additional portion of net position $254,384, represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
position ($970,857) may be used to meet governments ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

2020 2019 Change Change

Expenses;

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Economic development

Interest on shorl-term debt

Transfers t6 100 (18, 600)

Total expenditures

Program revenues:

$6,577,531 $6,769,126 4$08,405 6.62%

Charges for services

%

$ 1,913,832

2,113,295

893,6',79

304,736

125,122

18,246

426,139

1,140

40,937

63,705

$ 1,481,43 I

2,490,234

1,222,941

297,409

I 13,045

24,554

414,939

9,125

35,460

45,282

34,100

$ 432,401

283,061

(329,268)

7,32',7

12,6',77

(6,308)

11,200

(7,e9s)

5,417

18,423

29.t9%

n.37%

-26.92%

2.46%

11.21%

-2s.69%

2.10%

-8751%

15.45%

40.69%

-53.60%

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:

Property taxes and other taxes

Motor vehicle permit fees

Licenses and other fees

Grants and contributions not related

to a specific progranr

$602,097

242,955

I,592,000

4,403,263

731,441

171,813

22',7,059

$671,491

133,038

42,87 5

3,605,220

691,119

201,580

222,172

$(6e,3e4)

109,911

1,549,125

198,043

40,322

(29,707)

4,887

-1033%

82.62%

3613.t2%

22.14%

5.830

-t4.74%
2.20%

7

Unrestricted investrnent earnings -53.68%



Town of Bristol, New Hampshire
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18,607

76,292

40,170

85,352

(21,563)

(9,060) -10.61%Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Beginning net position, as restated

Ending net position
Change in net position

Expenses:

Sanitation

Water

Total expenditures

Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

General revenues:

Unrestricted investment earnings

Transfers

Total revenues

Beginning net position, as restated

$8,065.587 $5,693,017

4,659,908 5,136,017

6.t47.964 4.659.908

$1118B056 $G76Jo9)

BUSINESS.TYPE ACTIVITIES

2020 2019

_s2il2;l!_ 4t.68%

$53 5,945

483,895

$479,1 85

461,268

$56,760

22,627

Change
%

Change

I1.85%

4.91%

$ 1,0 19.840 $940,453 79,387 8.44%

$938,478

4,729

8,841

$1,040,075

40,457

15,026

$(101,597)

(35,728)

-9.77%

-88.31%

t6 100 34,700

1,1 30,258

(6,1 85) -4r.t6%

(18 -53.60%

_$lu3J_1!L -12.70%968 148

4,220,042

4,168,350

3,853, I 03

4,042,908Ending net position

Change in net position __retr2a_ $ 189,805

The largest portion of the Town's net position reflects its investment in capital assets such as land,

buildings, equipment, and infrastructure, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those

assets. Although the Town's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it

8



Town of Bristol, New HamPshire
Managementos Discussion and Analysis

should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sollrces,

since the capital assets themselves generally cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town's net position represents resources that are subject to external

restrictions on how they may be used. For the Town of Bristol, those restrictions include those

related to permanent trust funds, library and other police and public safety grant funds.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Purchase of Highway vehicles as well as a Police Cruiser. Received State of NH Gofer grant to

offset $132,095.96 in COVID related expenses. Received a $1,592,000 Emergency Broadband

Expansion CARES Grant from the State of NH to install optic fiber in the community

neighborhoods. Numerous other items of expenses from the Building Maintenance Fund.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Canital Assets

Total investment in capital asset to be an asset for governmental and business-type activities at

year end amounted to $13,304,468 (net of accumulated depreciation) a change of $1,244,187

from prior year. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system,

improvements, and machinery and equipment.

Additional information on capitals assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Long Term debt

At the end of the current year, total long-term Governmental activities debt outstanding was

$962,658,and Business-type activities long term debt outstanding was $1,148,838. A1l of which

was backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

Additional information on capital assets and long-term debt can be found in the Notes to the

Financial Statements

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

%
2020 2019 Chanse Change

At cost:

Not being depreciated

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Being depreciated:

$923,101 $780,101

196,626

$143,000

(196,626\

(53,626)

t8.33%

-100%

9

923 101 976,727 -5.49%



Town of Bristol, New Hampshire
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Buildings and building improvements

Vehicles

Machinery and equipment

Infi'astructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total all capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and building irnprovements

Vehicles

Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Net book value, capital assets being depreciated

Net book value, all capital assets

At cost:

Not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Being depreciated:

Buildings and building improvements

Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total all capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:

16,632,145 15,012,019 1,620,066 10.1gYo

2,862,608

3,110,7 19

213,081

9,962,630

2,862,608

3,139,938

174,087

I ,258,119

30,781

39,000

0.00%

0.82%

22.40%

22.10%

15,709,044 14,035,352 I,

603 911

613.692 11.92%

(s89,5s0)

(1,906,195)

(e3,285)

(4,189,594)

(528,258)

(1,918,254)

(84,097)

(4,040,182)

(61,292)

(12,059)

(9, I 88)

( 148,812

11.60%

-0.06%

10.92%

3,68%

(6, 624) (6,57 1 ,391) (201 ,233) 3 .15%

8,930,420 7,463,961 1.466,459 19.650n

$9,853,521 $8,440,688 $1,412,833 $16.14%

BUSINES S-TYPE ACTIVITIES

2020 Change Change
%

2019

$9,894 $ 94

18 l8t

88 75

89

6,878

0.00%

8.80%85 059

94,953 6,878 7.81%

2,841,560

2,024,141

5,437 ,1 1 1

2,841,560

2,024,141

5,4 31 .11 |

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

t0,302,8t2 10,302,812 0.000h

l0

10,3 91.165 10,390,887 6,818 0.07%



Town of Bristol, New Hampshire
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Buildings and building improvements

Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Net book value, capital assets being depreciated

Net book value, all capital assets

946.8 I 8) (6,771,324)

(2,072,610)

(1,878,079)

(2,996,129)

(2,050,663)

(1,827,117)

(21,947)

(50,962)

(1 02,585)

1.07%

2.79%

355%(2, 893.544)

(6, 175.494), 2.59%

3,355,994 5 3 1.488 (175,494) -4.97%

$3,4 50.947 $3,619,563 $( 168,616) -4.66%

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
2020 2019 Chanee VoChanse

Bonds/notes payable

Capital Leases

Compensated absences

Abatement settlement liabilitY
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefits

Total

Bonds/notes payable

Compensated absences

Net pension liability

Net other postemployment benefits

Total

186,721 $ 5,904,912 $ 1,281,809 21.71%

$ 962,658
160,185

263,007

80,857

5,295,448
424,526

$ 1,133,367

243,458
227,768
134,762

3,720,875
444.682

$ (170,709)
(83,273)

35,239
(53,905)

1,574,613
(20,156)

-15.06%
-34.20%

15.47%
-40.00%

4232%
-4.53%

$7,

BUSINES S-TYPE ACTIVITIES

2020 2019 Chans,e

%
Change

-9.16%

9.030/o

4232%

-5.38%

$ 1,148.838

41,623

5 10,968

42.517

$1,264,748

38,176

359,032

44,935

$(l 15,910)

3,447

151,936

(2,418)

_$u9_s46_ $1,706.891 $37,055 2.17%

l1



Town of Bristol, New Hampshire
Managementts Discussion and Analysis

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The Town of Bristol continues to review and update our capital investment plan (CIP)
to accornrnodate and anticipate the needs of the conrmunity and its continued operation based on

continued growth. We are continuing to experience minimal residential growth and commercial
property development.

"On March 7I,2020, the World Health Organization declared, the outbreak of a
coronavirus (COVID-19), a pandemic. In response to the pandemic, the State of New
Hampshire's Governor issued an order declaring a state of emergency on March 13,

2020. It is anticipated that the impact of the pandemic will continue for some time. As a
result, economic uncertainties have arisen which could have a financial impact on the
Town though such potential impact is unknown at this time".

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all of
Bristol citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. This financial report seeks to
demonstrate the Town's accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the

infonnation provided in this repoft or requests for additional information should be addressed to:
Town of Bristol, New Hampshire, 5 School Street, Bristol, New Harnpshire03222.

t2
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EXHIBIT-A
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Stnte nrent of Net Position
Decenther 3 l 2020

Govemmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Taxes receivables (net)

Account receivables (net)

lntergovernmental receivable

Internal balances

Inventory

Prepaid items

Capital assets:

Land and constnrction in progress

Other capital assets, net ofdepreciation
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postelnployment benefits

Total deferred outfl ows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Accrued interest payable

Short-term notes payable

Long-term tiabilities:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RBSOURCES
Unavailable revenue - Property taxes

IJnavailable levenue - Grants and donations

Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other posternployment benefits

Total deferred inflows ofresources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 2,258,859

I 40,533

979,469

t76,583
22,960

324,46s

240,908

187,644

(324,46s)

20,884

$ 4,s04,782

1 40,533

979,469

417,491

210,604

s 2,245,923

21,642

923,101

8,930,420

94,953

3,355,994

20,884

21,642

l,0 r 8,054

12,286,414

13,778,032 5,821,841 19,599,873

t,501,592
25,392

144,891

2,450

1,646,483

27,842

1,526,984 147,341 1,674,325

101,920

90,710
25,400

r,500,000

3t2,ll6
6,874,605

15,955

r 8,468

1t'7,314

1,626,632

ll7,875
90,710

43,868

1,500,000

429,430

8,s01,237

8,904,7 5l |,778,369 10,683, r 20

10,497

9,000

231,695

10,497

9,000

254,051

1,216

274,764

109

22,356

107

252,301 22,463

8,730,678

254.384
(2,837,098)

2,302,109

I,866,241

11,032,787

2s4,384
(e70,857)

$ 6,14'7 ,964 S 4,1 68,350 $ r 0,3 1 6,3 I 4

l3
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EXHIBIT B
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 3 I , 2020

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and

Change in Net Position

Governmental activities:

Ceneral government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Sanitation
Health

Welfbre

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Economic development

lnterest on Iong-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:

Water

Server

Total business-type activities
Total

4,626 $

\)) 9)1

3,425

70,820

4,914 $

143,64t

94,35s

$ r,9r3,832 S

2,773.295

893,679

304,736
t)\ 7))

t8,246

426,t39
1,r40

40,937

63.705

$ (3 t2,292)
(2,t06,727)

(795.899)

(233.916)

(12s,722)
(r8,r62)

(425,924)

( r.095)
(40.e37)
(63.705)

Charges

for
Services

Operating

Grants and

Contributions

Capital

Grants and

Contributions

Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities

( r r,047)
(65,586)

8,84 r

Expenses

6,561,43t

483,895

515 945

Total

(4.124.379)

( r r,047)
(65.586)

r,592,000 (312,2e2) $

(2.106,727)

(795,899)

(233,9 r 6)

(t25.722)
(r8.r62)

(425,924)

( 1,095)

(40,e37)
(63.705)

$

84

2t5

4,729

I.0 r9.840 938.478

s 7,s8t,271 $ 1,540,575

General revenues:

Ta.res:

Property

Other

Motor vehicle permit fees

Licenses and other fees

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Unrestricted investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Transfers

Total general revenues, contributions, and transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning, as restated (see Note 2l )
Net position, ending

(76.633) (76.633)

$ 1,592,000 (4,124,379) (76,633) (4,201,012)

45

602,097 242,9ss

472,848

46s,630

1,592,000 (4,124,379)

4,324,846

78,417

731,441

171,873

22'7,059

18,607

76,292

5,628,535
(r6,100)

5.612,435

1,488,056

4,6s9,908

4,324,846

78,417

731,44t
t7 t,873
227,059

27,448

76,292

24.94t
(sl.692)

4,220,042

5,637,376

5,637,376

t,436,364
8,879,950

8,841

16,100

s 6,147,964 $ 4,168,350 $ r0,3r6,3r4



EXTIIBIT C-1

TOIVN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Govemmentol Futtrls

Balance Sheel
Decemher 31, 2020

General

M iscellaneous

Cap ital Proiects

Other

Governmental

Funds

Total
Govelnrnental

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenls

Investments

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable (net)

Intergovernment al receivable

Interfund receivable

Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Interl'und payable

Short-terrn notes pay able

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFT,OWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - Property ta\es

Unavailable revenue - grants and donations

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BAT,ANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigred

Unassigned (deficit)

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred infl orvs

ofresources, and fund balances

I,116,469

I 75,533

s 1,972,616 $ $ 286,243

r 40,533

1,050

22,960

s 2,258,859

1 40,533

1,116,469

t76,583

22,960

416,355

21,642

4 r 6,355

21,642

s3,702,615 $ $ 450,786 $ 4,r53,40r

$ r0r,920
90,710

I,500,000

$ $

65,869 26,021

$ 101,920

90,710

91,890

1,500,000

t,692,630 65,869 26,021 1,784,520

176,759

9,000

176,759

9,000

I 85,759 1 85,759

21,642

5 r 5,798

512,939

773,847

51,420

202,964

r 63,506

6,875

73,062

202,964

679,304

5 19,8 l4
707,978(65,869)

1,824,226 (65,869) 424,765 2,183,122

$ 3,702,615 $ - $ 4s0,786 $4,r53,40r

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
l5



EXHIBIT C-2

TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE
ReconciliotiottoftheBnltnceSheel-Goverumenlal FundstotheSlfltenlentofNetPosition

December 31, 2020

Amounts reported lbr govelnnrental activities in the Statenrent of Net

Positiorr are different because:

Total fund balances ofgovernmental funds (Exhibit C-l)

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources,

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Pension and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) related deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows ofresources are not due and payable in the current

year, and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds as follows:
Deferred outflows ofresources related to pensions

Deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB

Interfund receivables and payables between governmental funds are

eliminated on the Statement of Net Position.

Receivables

Payables

Other long-tenx assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures,

and therelbre, are repor-ted as deferred inflows ofresources in the governmental funds.

Allowance for uncollectible properly taxes that is recognized on the full accrual

basis, but not on the modified accrual.

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds.

Accrued interest payable

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period,

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds/notes

Capital leases

Compensated absences

Abatement settlement liability
Net pension liability
Other p ostemp loy ment benefits

$ 1,501,592

(231,695)

25,392
( 1,1 09)

$ t6,632,t4s
(6,778,624)

$2,183,t22

9,8s3,52 r

1,294,t80

166,262

( r 37,000)

(2s,400)

(7,t86,721)

$ 6,147,964

$ (9 r ,890)

9l 890

$ 962,658

I 60,1 85

263,007

80,857

5,29s,488

424,526

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A)

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
l6



EXHIBITC-3
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Govemmenlal Futtds
Stotenrcnt of Revenues, Expenditures, ond Chonges in Fund Bolonces

Forthe Fiscal Yenr Ended December 31 2020

General

Other

Miscellaneous Governmental

CapitalPro.lects Funds

Total

Governnrental

Funds

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and perrnits

I nt ergovernment al

Charges fbr services

M iscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITIJRLS
Current:

General government

Public safety

Higlrrvays and streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Economic development

Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency ) ol revenues

over ( under) exp enditures

OTHER FINANCING S OURCES (US ES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances ldeficit). beginning

Fund balances (deficit), ending

6,363,420 1,592,000 136,067 8,091,487

465

34,0 r 3

12,640

1,599,855

2,211,576

644,261

304,889

121,061

18,246

379,530

1,140

40,937

I,600,320

2,245,589

644,26t

304,889

121,061

18,246

392,170

I ,140
40,937

$ 4,429,163

903,314

470,014

496,229

64,700

I,592,000

I,617,947

l 05,868

30, r 99

$4,429,163
903,314

2.062,014

602,097

94,899

$ s

253982
67,625

439,044 I 3,593

253,982

67,625

2,070,584

6,082,146 1,617,947 60,711 7,760,804

281,274 (2s,947) 75,356 330,683

10,000

(e9,24s)
25,947 57,198

( r 0,000)

93,145

(t09,24s)
(89,24s) 2s,947 47,198 (16,100)

192,029

1,632,197

122,554

302,211

3 I 4,583

1,868,539(65,869)

$1,824,226 $ (6s,869) $ 424,76s $2,183,122

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integral part of this staternent.
t1



EXHIBIT C-4

TOIYN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Reconcilinliott of the Stntenenl of Revenues, E4tenditures, tnd

Changes in Funil Bolonces - Goventmentul Funds to the Slotemenl of Activities
For lhe Fiscol Yeor Etrded Decenber 3 I, 2020

Amounts leportecl fbr governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are dil'ferent because:

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds (Exhibit C-3)

Governmental f'unds report capital outlzrys as expenditures, while governmental

activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life ofthe
assets. Capital outlay expenditures exceeded depreciation expense in the curlent year,

as follows:
Cap italized cap ital outlay

Depreciation expense

Transf-ers in and out between governmental funds are eliminated

on thc Stater.nent of Activities.
Transfers in

Transfers out

Revenue in the Statement ofActivities that does not provide current financial

l'esources is not repofted as revenue in the governmental funds.

Change in deferred inflows ofresources fortaxrevenue
Change in allowance for uncollectible propelty ta,res

Proceeds fi'orn issuing longterm liabilities provide current financial resources to
govelnmental f'unds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the

Staternent of Net Position. Repayment of longterm liabilities is an expenditure in

the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces longterm liabilities in the

Repayment of bond/note principal

Repayment of capital leases

Long-term abatement settlement agreements are reported as long-term liabilities in the Statement

of Net Position. Repayment of the abatement settlement liability is a revenue reduction in

the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces the abatement settlement liability in
the Statemenl of Net Position.

Repayment of abatement settlement

Some expenses reporled in the Statement of Activities do not require the

use ofcurrent financial resources. and thereibre, are not reported as expenditures

in governmental f'unds.

Decrease in accrued interest expense

Increase in compensated absences payable

Net change in net pension liability, and deferred

outflorvs and inl1ows of resources related to pensions

Net change in net other postemployment benefits liability and deferred

outflows and inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits

Changes in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B)

$ (93,t4s)

93,t45

$ 1,845,066

(432,233)

$ 3 I 4,583

t.412,833

(79,805)

253.982

53.905

(467.442)

$ (42,805)

(37,000)

$ 170,709

83,273

$ 3,920

(3s,239)

(464,071)

27,948

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statelnents are an integral part of this statement
t8
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EXHIBIT D
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statenrcnl of Revenues, Expenditurcs, and Chonges in Fund Bnlonce

Budget nnd Acluctl (Nott-GAAP Budgetory Basis)

Geneml Fund
Forthe Fiscnl Year Etrded December 31, 2020

REVENUES
'l'axes

Licenses and pennits

I nt ergovernmental

Charges lor services

M iscellaneous

Total revenues

FXPENDITURES
Current:

Genelal govel'nment

Public safety

Flighways and streets

Sanitation

Flealth

Welfare

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Economic developtnent

Debt service:

Principal

Intelest

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) exp enditures

OTHER FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Decrease in nonspendable f'und balance

Unassigncd lund balance. beginning

Unassigned fund balance. ending

Budgeted Amounts

Variance

Posit ive

(Negal ive)Original Final Actual

$ 4,395,445

820,749

503,904

576,555

25,060

6,189,627 6,321,713 6,280,638 (41,075

$ 4,39s,445

820;749

371,818

576,s55

25,060

$ 4,349,358

903,3 r 4

470,014

496,229

6t,723

$ (46.087)

82,s65

(33,890)

(80,326)

36,663

1,546,521

2,095,913

986,629

346,762

142,607

35,084

405,263

3,562
?s q?7

1,55 1,7 1 3

2,227,999

986,629

346,762

142,607

3 5,084

405,263

3,562

35,937

1,600,760

2,21t,576
9l 0,49 r

304,889

t2t,061
t8,246

3 85,93 0

l, 140

40,937

(49,047)

16,423

76,138

4 l,873

21,546

r 6,838

t9,333
) 4))

(5,000)

273,753

59,137

l r6,700

)'17',15)

s9,137

485,883

253,982

67,625

456,730

19,7'70

(8,488)

29,153

6,047 ,868 6,554,328 6,373,367 I 80,96 I

t41,7s9 (232,6t5) (92.729) 139,886

384,374 (62,04t)
(382,59 r ) (e7,5e1)

(212,959) r61,4I5 t,783 (159.632)

$ (7r,2oo) $ (7r,2oo) (e0,e46) _q!:JfI
7,204

886,85 r

72,041
(285,000)

446,415

(285,000)

$ 803, I 09

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integral part of this statelxent
l9



EXHIBIT E-I
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

Proprietary Funds
Slolement of Net Position

December 3l , 2020

Business-ty pe Act ivities

Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer

Total
Enterprise Funds

ASSETS
Cun'ent assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

I ntergovernmental receivable

Inventory

Noncurrent assets:

Intergovernmental receivable

Capital assets:

Land and construction in progess

Other capital assets, net ofdepreciation
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFITOWS O F RE.S OURCES

Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployment benefits

T otal deferred outfl ows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued interest payable

Internal balances

Long terrn liabilities :

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFIOWS OF RE.S OURCES
Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred inflows ofresources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

2,783,595 3,362,7 tl 6,146.306

s |,299,987

I 10,505

19,719

9,894

1,343,490

$ 945,936

130,403

7,796

1,165

I 79,848

8s,059

2,012,s04

$ 2,24s,923

240,908

7,796

20,884

179,848

94,953

3,355,994

82,042 65,299

80,678

1,364

3,102

8,419

44,240

48,087

792,092

64,2't3

r,086

144,89t

2,450

147,341

12,853

10,049

280,225

69,227

t:+,s+o

15,955

18,468

324,465

ll7,314
1,626,632

895,940 1,206,894 2,102,834

12,448

60

9,908

47

22,356

t07

1 2,508 9,955 22,463

716,040

|,241,149

r,586,069

625,092

2,302,109

1,866,241

$ 1,957,r89 S2,2n,t6t $ 4,r68,350

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this staternent

20



EXHIBIT E-2
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

Proprietory Funds
Slalement of Revenues, Expenses, nnd Changes in Net Posilion

For the Fiscal Year Endel December 3l, 2020

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

ffi
Total

Enterprise Funds

Operating revenues:

User charges

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages

Operation and maintenance

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating gain/(loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) :

Intergovernmental revenues

Investment income

Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Other financing sources:

Transfers in

Change in net position

Net position, beginning, as restated (see Note 21)

Net position, ending

$ 440,277

32,5'71

$ 462,872

2,758
903,149

35,329
$

472,848 465,630 938,478

218,628

165,924

83,417

180,651

256,742

92,107

399,279

422,666

175,524

467,969

4,879

529.500

(63,870)

997,469

(58,99r )

5,404
(15,926)

4,729

3,437
(6,445)

4,729

8,841

(22,371)

10,522) 1,721 (8,801)

1,254 14,846 1 6,1 00

(4,389)

1,961,578

$ r,957, r 89

(4',/,303)

2,258,464

(sl,692)
4,220,042

s 2,2t1,t6t $ 4,168,350

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integral part of this staterxent
2l



EXHIBIT E-3
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSTIIRE

Prcprietary Funds
Stotemenl of Cnsh Flows

For the Fiscal Yeor Ended December 3 I, 2020

Business-ty p e Act ivities

Errtelprise Funds

Water Server'

Total

Entelprise Funds

Cash florvs fi'orn operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users

Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash llows from capital and related financing activities:

Principal paid on bonds

Acquisition and construction offixed assets

Interest paid

Intergovernmental

Interfund transfer

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash fl ows from investing activities

Investment income

Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning

Cash, ending

Operating gain(loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net

cash provided by operating aclivities:

Depreciation e\pense

Changes in othel receivables

Changes in inventory

Changes in deferred outflows ofresources

Changes in accounts payable

Changes in internal balances

Changes in net pension liability
Changes in net OPEB liability
Changes in cornpensated absences payable

Changes in del'erred inflows of resources

Total ad.justments

Net cash provided by operating activities

(67,474)

(6,878)

(7,387)

12,203

14,846

(r rs,910)
(6,878)

(23,9s0)

t2,203

r6,t00

$ 469,132
(216,904)

( r5 r,480)

I 00,748

$ 463,504
(178,927)

(r76,r33)
108,444

932,636

(3e5,83 r )
(327,6t3)

$

209,192

(48.436)

( r 6,563)

I,254
(63,7 45) (54,690) ( r r 8,435)

5,404 3,437 8,841

42,407

I,257 ,580
s t,299,987

Reconciliation of Operoling Gain/(Loss) lo Net Cuh Provided by Opernting Activities

$ 4,87e $ (63,870) $ (58,9er)

57,191

888,745

$ 945,936

99,598

2,146,325

$ 2,24s,923

83.417

(3,7 r 6)

4.8 l9
(s2,520)

3,102
( r6,503)

84,600

( r.488)

t.724
(7,566)

175,524

(s,842)

4,"t40

(e4,322)

t 5,955

32,752

t5t,936
(2,419)

3,448
( r 3,589)

95,869

92,107

(2,t26)
(7e)

(4 r ,802)
12,853

49,2ss

67,336
(931)

t,724

(6,023)

172,314 268,t83

$ 100,748 $ 108,444 S 209,t92

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ale an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT F-I
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Fiducinry Funds
Stotement of Fiduciary Net Position

December 3l, 2020

Private

Purpose

Trust Funds

All
Custodial

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,644 $3,204,687

LIABILITIES
Intergovernmental p ay ables

School 2,984,586

NET POSITION
Restricted $ 98,644 $ 220,101

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT F.2
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Fiduciory Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Nel Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020

Private

Purp ose

Trust Funds

All
Custodial

Funds

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Investment earnings

Tax collections for other governments

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships paid

Payments for trust purposes

Payments oftaxes to other governments

Payments for escrow purposes

Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

$

512
s 700,000

1,258

6,979,6'79

512 7,680,937

8,000

500,000

6,979,679

122

8,000 7,479,801

201,136

r 8,965

(7,488)

106,132

$ 98,644 220,101

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integral part of this statement
24



TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3I,2O2O

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies .....
Reporting Entity .....
Basis of Accounting, and Measurement Focus...
Cash and Cash Equivalents..............
Statement of Cash Flows ...........
Investments..
Receivables.....
Inventory.........
Prepaid Items..
Capital Assets.
Interfund Activities.....
Propeffy Taxes...........
Accounts Payable
Deferred Outfl ows/lnfl ows of Resoulces ...........
Long-tenn Obligations
Compensated Absences
Defined Benefit Pension Plan.............
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.
Net Position/Fund Balances...................
Use of Estimates ..............

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability..
Budgetary Information..
Budgetary Reconciliation to GAAP Basis.....
Deficit Fund Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents............

Investments

Taxes Receivable .............

Other Receivables..........

Capital Assets..........

Interfund Balances and Transfers ......................

Intergovernmental Payab|es.................

Deferred Outfl ows/Infl ows of Resou rces ............

Lease Commitment

Capital Leases

Short-term Debt.............

Long-term Liabilities

Defined Benefit Pension Plan ............

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
New Hampshire Retirernent System (NHRS).....
Town of Bristol Retiree Health Benefit Prograrn

Encum brances .................

State Aid to Water Pollution Projects.................

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FANDS

NOTE
I

1-A
1-B
l-c
I-D
l-E
l-F
1-G
1-H
1-I
1-J

-K
-L
-M
-N
-o
-P
-a
-R
-S

2

2-A
2-B
2-C

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

ll
l2

t3

14

15

t6
r 6-4
t 6-B

t7

t8



covlD-l9....,....

Tax Abatements

Net Position

Governmental Fund Balances ......

Prior Period Adjustment

Risk Management..........

Contin gent Liabilities....

TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEII/ HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2O2O

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26Subsequent Events.........

26



TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3I,2O2O

NOTE 1 _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial staterxents of the Town of Bristol, New Harnpshire (the Town), have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
Generally Accepted Accounting Plinciples (GAAP) for governmental units as prescribed by the Governrnental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) and other authoritative sources.

The more significant of the Town's accounting policies are described below.

l-A Reporting Entity

The Town of Bristol is a rnunicipal corporation governed by an elected 5-member Board of Selectmen. In evaluating how to
define the Town for financial reporling purposes, rnanagement has considered all potential component units. The decision to
include a potential component unit in the reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth by the GASB. The Town has

no colxponent units to include in its reporting entity.

l-B Basis of Accounting, and Mensurement Focus

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The

operations of each fund ale accounted fbr with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of Lesources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures ol' expenses, as

appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which
they are to be spent and the rneans by which spending activities are controlled.

Government-wide Finoncial Stotemenls - The Town's government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net
Position and a Statement of Activities. These statelnents present summaries of governmental and business-type activities forthe
Town accompanied by a total column. FidLrciary activities of the Town are not included in these statements.

These statements are presented on an "economic resources" rneasurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, all of the Town's assets, defen'ed outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, including
capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities
presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, l'evenues are recognized in the period in which they are

earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash

flows. The types oftransactions reported as program revenues for the Town are repofted in three categories: 1) charges for
services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.

Certain eliminations have been made to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of
Net Position have been eliminated, except those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type
activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column.

Governmenlul Fuud Finoncial Stilernenls - Include a balance sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances for all major governmental firnds and nonmajor funds aggregated. An accompanying statement is presented to

reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and changes in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net

position and changes in net position presented in the govemment-wide financial statements. The Town has presented all rnajor
funds that met those qualifications.

Governmental f'und financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modiJied

accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are

considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the

current period. For this purpose, the Town generally considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period, with the exception of leirnbursernent-based grants, which use a peliod of one year. Property
taxes, licenses, and permits, intelgovernmenlal revenue, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to

be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are

recognized as revenue when the qualitying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been rnet. All
other revenue itenrs are consideled to be rneasurable and available only when cash is received by the governrnent.
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TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2O2O

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service

expenditures, as well as expenditures related to cornpensated absences and clairns and judgrnents, al'e recorded only when
payment is due.

The Town reports the following rnajor governmental funds:

General Fund - is the Town's prirnary operating fund. The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those

required to be accounted for in another fund. The prirnary revenue sources include property taxes, State grants and motot'

vehicle pennit fees. The primary expenditures are for general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation,
culture and recreation, debt service and capital outlay. Under GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governntental Fund Type Definitions, guidance the expendable trust funds are consolidated in the general fund.

Miscellaneous Capital Projects Fund - the miscellaneous capital project fund accounts for the activity peftaining to the

construction/renovation of various Town projects, primarily the purchase and installation of the new fiber optic netwot'k.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to

expenditures for specifi ed purposes.

Capital Projects Funds - are used to account for the financial resources and activities relating to specific construction
projects.

Permanent Fund - are held in the custody ofthe Trustees ofTrust Funds and are used to account for resources held in trust
for use by the Town. These can include legal trusts for which the interest on the corpus provides funds for the Town's
cemetery operations.

All the governmental funds not meeting the criteria established for major funds are presented in the other governlnental column
of the fund financial statements. The Town repons eight nonmajor governmental funds.

Proprietary Funtl Financial Statenrcnls - Include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Net Position, and a Statelnent of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund.

Proprietary funds are repofied using the "economic resoul'ces" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities (whether current or noncurrent), and deferred inflows of
resources are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are

recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred,

regardless of the tirning of related cash flows.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated fi'om the primary operations of the fund. All
othel levenues are repofted as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary
operations ofthe fund. All other expenses are repofted as non-operating expenses.

The Town reports the following rnajor proprietary funds:

Water Fund - accounts for the activities related to the operation of the water treatment plant, wells, and watel'system.

Sewer Fund - accounts for the activities related to the operation of the sewer treatment plant, pumping station, and sewer
lines.

Firluciary Futrtl Financial Statenrcnls - lnclude a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Staternent of Changes in Fiduciary
Net Position. The Town's fiduciary funds are private purpose tt'ust and custodial funds, which are custodial in nature. These

firnds are accounted for on a spending or "economic resources" Ineasurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the

proprietary funds explained above.
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TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2O2O

The Town reports the following fiduciary funds:

Private Purpose Trust Funcl - are used to report trust arrangements, other than pension and investment trusts, under which
principal and incorne benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Custodial Fund - are custodial in nature and do not belong to the prirnary government. A custodial fund is used to account

for assets held on behalf of outside pafties, including othel governments.

l-C Cnsh and Cnsh Equivolents

The Town considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three Inonths or less to be cash equivalents.

Deposits with financial institutions consist prirnarily of demand deposits and savings accounts. A cash pool is maintained that is
available for use by all funds. Each fund's pofiion of this pool is reflected on the combined financial staterxents under the

caption "cash and cash equivalents."

The treasurer is lequired to deposit such moneys in solvent banks in state or the Public Deposit Investrnent Pool pursuant to New
Harnpshire RSA 383:22. Funds rnay be deposited in banks outside of the state if such banks pledge and deliverto a third parly
custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits, United States governrnent or governlnent

agency obligations or obligations to the State of New Harnpshire in value at least equal to the arnount of the deposit in each case.

l-D Statentent of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with
a maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local government investment pools to be cash equivalents.

1-E Investments

State statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available as follows

New Harnpshire law authorizes the Town to invest in the following fype of obligations:
. Obligations of the United States government,
. The public deposit investrnent pool established pursuant to RSA 383:22,
. Savings bank deposits,
. Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of banks incorporated under the laws of the State of New

Harnpshire or in banks recognized by the State treasurer.

Any person who directly or indirectly receives any such funds or moneys for deposit or for investment in securities of any kind
shall, prior to acceptallce of such funds, rnake available at the time of such deposit or investment an option to have such funds

secured by collateral having a value at least equal to the amount of such funds. Such collateral shall be segregated for the

exclusive benefit of the Town. Only securities defined by the bank commissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant to
RSA 386:57 shall be eligible to be pledged as collateral.

Fair Value Measurements of Investments - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application, except for investments measured using net asset value (NAV) as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, the

Town categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments within the fair value hierarchy established by US GAAP. The

fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used for fair value measuremeltt into three levels as follows:

Level I - lnputs reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Town has

the ability to access at the rneasurement date. Directly held marketable equity securities would be exarnples of Level
I investtnents.

Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices that are observable fol the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active. Because they most often are priced on the

basis of transactions involving sirnilar but not identical securities or do not trade with sufficient frequency, cetlain
directly held fixed incotne securities are categorized in Level 2.

Level 3 - lnputs are significant unobservable inputs.
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TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3I,2O2O

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level I inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs. ln certain instances

where the detelmination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, is the

level in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value tneasut'emel')t. Investtnents

are reported at fair value. If an investrnent is held directly by the Town and an active rnarket with quoted prices exists, such as

for domestic equity securities, the market price of an identical security is used to repoft fair value and is classified in Level 1.

Corporate fixed income securities and ceftain govelnmental securities utilize pricing that rnay involve estimation using similar
securities or trade dates and are classified in Level 2. Fair values for shares in registered mutual funds and exchange-traded
funds are based on published share prices and classified in Level L

In detennining fair value, the Town utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minirnize the

use ofunobservable inputs to the extent possible.

l-F Receivnbles

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent amounts due to the Town at Decetnber 31. They are aggregated into a

single accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) line for ceftain funds and aggregated columns. They consist

primarily of taxes, billing for charges, and other user fees.

1-G Inventory

The inventories of the Town are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The inventories of the Town' s water

and sewer funds consist of expendable materials and supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as alt expenses when

consurned rather than when purchased.

I-H Prepaid ltents

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items

1-I Copital Assets

Capital assets include property, plant, and equiprnent, infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items),

and intangible assets (i.e., easements) which ale repofted in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in

the government-wide financial statements. The accounting and reporting treatment applied to capital assets associated with a

fund are detennined by the fund's measurement focus. General capital assets are assets of the Town as a whole. When
purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in a governmental fund and capitalized as assets in the governrnent-wide
Statenrent of Net Position. Capital assets of the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund and the cost basis for proprietary
fund capital assets is the same as that used for general capital assets.

Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $50,000 for infrastructure and

$5,000 for all other asset categories. Additionally, these assets must have an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such

assets are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost. When the cost of the capital assets cannot be determined fi'om

available records, estirnated historical cost is used. Donated capital assets received on or prior to June I 5, 2015, are recorded at

theirestimatedfairvalueatthedateofdonation. Donatedcapital assetsreceivedafterJune l5,20l5,are recordedatacquisition
value.

The costs of nonnal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvetnents are capitalized and

depreciated over the rernaining useful lives ofthe related fixed assets, as applicable.

Capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years

Capital Asset Classes:

Buildings and building improvements l5 - 40

Vehicles 5 - 15

Machinery and equiprnent 5 - 15

Infl'astlucture 20 - 50
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TOIYN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2O2O

I -J I nte rfu n d Act iv it ies

lnterfund activities are reported as follows:

Interfund Receivables ond Poyables - Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangetnents
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between
tlre govetnmental activities and business activities are repofted in the governrnent-wide financial statelnents as "internal
balances." Interfund receivables and payables between funds are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

Interfund Transfers - Interfund transfers represent flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a

requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are repotled as other financing uses in the funds making the
transfers and other financing sources in the funds receiving the transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are repofted after
nonoperating revenues and expenses. In the governlnent-wide financial statements, all interfund transfers between individual
governmental funds have been eliminated.

1-K Property Toxes

Property tax billings occur semi-annually and are based on the assessed inventory values as ofApril I ofeach year in accordance
withRSAT6:15-a,Senti-Annual CollectionofTaxesincertainTownsandCities. Warrantsfol'theyearwereissuedonMay9,
2020, and Novernber 18,2020, and due on July 12,2020, and December 31,2020. Interest accrues at a rate of 8% on bills
outstanding after the due date and 14Yo on tax liens outstanding. The Town placed a lien on all outstanding taxes from 2019 on
June22,2020.

In connection with the setting of the tax rate, Town officials with the approval of the Departrnent of Revenue Administration,
establish and raise through taxation an amount for tax abatement and refunds, known as overlay. This amount is reported as a

reduction in tax revenue and is adjusted by management for any reserve for uncollectable at year-end. The property taxes
collected by the Town include taxes levied for the State of New Hampshire, Newfound Area School District, and Grafton
County, which are remitted to these entities as required by law.

The Town net assessed valuation as of April 1,2020, utilized in the setting of the tax rate was as follows:

For the New Flampshire education ta,r $535,089,084

For all other taxes $557,750, I 84

The tax rates and amounts assessed for the year ended December 31,2020, were as follows:

Per $1,000 Property

of Assessed Ta,res

Valuation Assessed

M unicipal portion
School portion:

State of New Hampshire

Local

County portion
Total

$ 8.10 $ 4,st7,796

I-L Accounts Poyoble

Accounts payable represent the gross number of expenditures or expenses incurred as a result of nonnal operations, but for
wlrich no actual payment has yet been issued to vendors/providers as of Decetnber 31,2020.

I-M De./brred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

De/brrec{ outflot4)s of resources, a separate financial statement element, r'epresents a consurnptiotr of net position or fund balance
that applies to a future period(s) and thus will not be recognized as an outflow ofresources (expenses) until then.

1.87

9.02

1.70

Trrq

I ,001.030
5,032,69s

94s,9s4

$11,497 ,47 5
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TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2O2O

De/brred inflotvs of resources, a separate financial statement element, l'epresents an acquisition of net position or fund balance
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

1 -N Long-term Obligotions

In the governrnent-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial staterrents, long-tenn debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the respective Staternents of Net Position.

1 -O Compensated Absences

The Town's policy allows certain employees to earn varying amounts of vacation, sick and personal time based on the
employee's length of ernployment. Upon separation fi'om service, employees are paid in full for any accrued leave earned as set

forlh by the Town's personnel policy. The liability for such leave is reported as incurred in the governrnent-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. A liability forthose amounts is recorded in the governmental funds only if the liability has matured as

a result of employee resignations or retirements.

1-P DeJined Benefit Pension PIon

GASB Staternent No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statentent No. 27 and as

amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transitionfor Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date and
GASB Statement No. 82 Pension Issues - an amendment of GASB Statenrent No. 67, No. 68 and No. 73 requires participating
employers to recognize their proportionate share of collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and pension expense, and schedules have been prepared to provide employers with their calculated
proportionate share of these amounts. The collective amounts have been allocated based on employer contributions during the
respective fiscal years. Contributions from ernployers are recognized when legally due, based on statutory requirernents.

The schedules prepared by New Hampshire Retirement Systern, and audited by the plan's independent auditors, require
lnanagement to make a number of estimates and assumptions related to the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature and

uncertainty of these estimates, actual results could differ, and the differences may be material.

1-Q Postemployment Benefits Otlter Tltnn Pensions

The Town rnaintains two separate other postemployment benefit plans (OPEB), as follows

New Hanrpshire Retirement System PIan - For the purposes of measuring the total other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the New Hampshire Retirement System OPEB Plan (the plan) and additions to/deductions
from the plan's fiduciary net position has been determined on the sarne basis as they are reported by the New Hampshire
Retirement System. For this purpose, the plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are repofted at fair value, except money market investmetrts and participating interest earning investment
contracts that have a rnaturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.

Single Employer PIan - For purposes of rneasuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information has been determined based on the Town's actualial repoft. For
this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terrns.

I-R Net Position/Futtd Bolances

Government-wide Stuteme,rLr - Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three corxponents:

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the

outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
irnprovement of those assets.
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AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
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Restricted net position - Results when constraints placed on net position use are either extemally imposed by a third
party (statutory, bond covenant, or granting agency) or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. The Town typically uses restricted assets first, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively defer the use until a fufther project.

Unrestricted net position - Consists of net position not rneeting the definition of the pleceding categories.
Unrestricted net position is often subject to constraints imposed by rnanagernent which can be removed or modified.

Fund Balance ClassiJicatiors - GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governntental Fund Type Definitions,
plovides more clearly defined fund balance categories to make sure the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a

government's fund balances are lrore transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending
constlaints:

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form (such as prepaid items,
inventory, or tax deeded propelty subject to resale); or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted -Amounts forwhich constraints have been placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed
by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of
the legislative body (Town Meeting). These amounts cannot be used for any other pulpose unless the legislative body
relroves or changes the specified use by taking the sarne type of action that was ernployed when the funds were initially
committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been

specifically cornmitted for use in satisfying those contractual requirernents.

Assigned - Arnounts that are constrained by the Town's intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither
restrictednorcomrnitted. ThisintentcanbeexpressedbytheBoardofSelectmenthroughthebudgetaryprocess.

Unassigned - Amounts that are available for any puryose. Positive amounts are reported only in the general fund. The
unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be

eliminated by the offsetting of assigned fund balance alnounts.

When multiple net position/fund balance classifications are available for use, it is the government's policy to utilize the most
restricted balances first, then the next most restricted balance as needed. When components of unrestricted fund balance are

used, cornmitted fund balance is depleted first followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

In the general fund, the Town strives to maintain an unassigned fund balance to be used for unanticipated emergencies of
approximately 5% of the annual budget, including Town, School and County appropriations.

l-S Use of Estimates

The financial statements and related disclosures are prepared in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Management is required to make estirnates and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements, and revenues and expenses during the period repofied. These estimates include assessing the

collectability of accounts, taxes and ambulance receivables, and the useful lives of capital assets, net pension liability, other
postemployrnent benefit liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resonrces related to botlr pension and other posternployment
benefits, alnong others. Estinrates alld assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions are leflected in the

financial statelnents in the period they are deterrnined to be necessary. Actual results could differ fi'om estimates.
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NOTE 2 _ STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

2-A B udgetary Informntiott

General governrnental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled by a fonnal integrated

budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirernents which govern the Town's operations. At its annual

meeting, the Town adopts a budget for the current year for the general, water and sewer funds. Except as reconciled below, the

budget was adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Management may transfer appropriations between operating categories as deerned necessaly, but expenditures tnay not legally

exceed budgeted appropriations in total. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless encutnbered.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations (cefiain projects and specific

items not fully expended at year-end) are recognized, is employed in the governmental funds. Encumbrances are not the

equivalent ofexpenditures, and are therefore, repofted as paft ofthe assigned fund balance at year-end, and are carried forward to

supplement appropriations of the subsequent year.

Statestatutesrequirebalancedbudgetsbutprovidefortheuseofbeginningunassignedfundbalancetoachievethatend. Forthe
fiscal year 2020,none of the beginning general fund unassigned fund balance was applied for this pulpose and $71,200 was

voted from unassigned fund balance to fun curent year appropriatiorls.

2-B Budgetary Reconciliation to GAAP Bosis

While the Town reports financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance on the basis of generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a

basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance - Budget and Actual is presented for each major governmental fund which had a budget. Differences between the

budgetary basis and GAAP basis of accounting for the general fund are as follows:

Revenues and other financing sources:

Per Exhibit D (budgetary basis)

Ad.justment:

Basis difference:

GASB Statement No. 54:

To record revenue ofthe blended expendable trust l'unds

To eliminate transfers between general and expendable trust funds

Change in deferred tax revenue relatingto 60-day Ievenue recognition

recognized as revenue on the GAAP basis" but not on the budgetary basis

Change in allowance for uncollectible property taxes

Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis)

$ 6,665,012

$ 6,373,420

2,977

(374,374)

42,805

37,000

Expenditures and other financing uses:

Per Exhibit D (budgetary basis)

Adjustment:

Basis differences:

Encrrrnbrances. beginn ing

Encumbrances, ending

CASB Statement No. 54:

To record expenditures ofthe blended expcndable trust lunds

To eliminate transfers betrveen general and expendable trust ftlllds

Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis)

$ 6,755,958

20,000

(3r3,e8r)

2.760

(283,346)

$ 6,t81,391

2-C Deficit Fund Balonces

The Miscellaneous Capital Projects fund had a deficit fund balance at Decernber 31,2020, of $65,869. This deficit will be

financed through future revenues ofthe fund that will be issued in the subsequeltt year.
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

NOTE 3 _ CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Town's deposits are entirely covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held by the Town's agent in the

Town's name. The FDIC currently insures the first $250,000 of the Town's deposits at each financial institution, per case

custodian. Deposit balances over $250,000 ale insured by the collateral. As of year-end, the carrying amount of the Town's
deposits was $7,808,1 l3 and the bank balances totaled $1 ,944,427 .

Cash and cash equivalents reconciliation:

Cash per Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A)
Cash per Staternent of Fiduciary Net Position (Exhibit F-l)

Total cash and cash equivalents $7,808,1 t3

$4,504,782
3,303,331

NOTE 4 _ INVESTMENTS

Note 1-E describes statutory requirements covering the investment of the Town funds. The Town holds investrnents that are

rneasured at fair value on a recurring basis. Since investing is not a core part of the Town's mission, the Town detennines that

the disclosures related to these investrnents only need to be disaggregated by rnajor type. The Town categorizes its fair value

measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The Town has the

fof lowing recurring fair value measurements and maturities as of December 3 I ,2020:

Valuation

M easurement Repolted Exempt from
M ethod Balance l-5 Years Disclosure

Investments type:
Certificates of deposit

Equity mutual funds

Fixed income mutual funcls

Total fair value

$

$ 104,615

Interest Rate Risk - This is the risk that changes in rnarket interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

The Board of Selectmen's investment policy restricts investrnents in fixed incorne securities to United States Treasury Securities

maturing in less than one year and other shorl-terrn obligations of United States Government Agencies. The Trustees of Trusts

funds limits the average maturity of debt securities so that they do not exceed ten years and additionally, the duration of the

investment holding period does not exceed five years.

Credit Risk - The Board of Selectmen's investrnent policy lirnits fixed income securities to only the United States Treasuty and

United States Government Agency bonds. The Trustees of Trust Fund's investrnent policy states that all fixed income security

purchasesshall haveaminimumqualityofAbyeitherMoody'solStandardandPoor's. TheTown'sinvestmentpool hadthe
following credit risk structure:

l.evel I

Level I

],evel2

$ 35,918

55,954

48,661
-$ 

'?0;5l:-

$35,918

$35,918

55,954

48,661

lnvestments

Rep orted

Balance

Exempt fron-r

Disclosure

Certificates of dep osit

Equity rr.rutual funds

Fixed inconre mutual lunds

Total $ r40,533 $ 140,533

Custodial Credit Risk - This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker/dealer) to honor a

transaction, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investnrents or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The Board of Selectrnen's and Trustees of Trr-rst Funds' investrnent policies do not directly address tlris risk.

$ 35.9 r8

55,954

48.661

$ 35,918

55,954

48.66 r
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Concentration of Credit Risk - The Board of Selectrnen's investrnent policy does not directly address this risk. The Trustees

of Trust Funds investrnent policy states that for fixed income securities, concentration in any one issuer shall not exceed ten

percent except in obligations of the United States and/or the State of New Flampshire and its subdivisions. For equities, the

purchase of a single company should not exceed five percent of the equiry portion of the portfolio. The maximum exposure to

any one name, because the price appreciation, should not exceed twenty percent of the equities. More than 5Vo of the Town's
investments are in Franklin Savings Bank. These investments are26oh of the Town's total investments.

Investment reconciliation:

Investments per Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) $ 140,533

NOTE 5 _ TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable represent the arnount of current and prior year taxes which have not been collected as of December 31 ,2020
The amount has been reduced by an allowance for an estirnated uncollectible amount of $137,000. Taxes receivable by year are

as follows:

As reported on:

Exhibit A Exhibit C-l
Property:

Levy of2020
Unredeemed (under tax lien):

Levy of20l9
Levy of20l8
Levies of20l7 and prior

Less: allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes

Net taxes receivable

$935,0rr $ 935,01l

86,894

48,431

46,133
(r37,000) *

$ 9'79,469

86,894

48,431

46,133

$ 1,1 1 6,469

*The allowance for uncollectible property taxes is not recognized under tlre modilied accrual basis of-accourrting (Exhibit C-l and C-3) due to the 60-day rule as

explained in Note t -8. However, the allowance is recognized under the lull accrual basis of accounting (Exhibits A and B).

NOTE 6_ OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31,2020, consisted of accounts (billings for police details, water, sewer, ambulance, and other user

charges) and intergovernmental amounts arising from grants. Receivables are recorded on the Town's financial statelnents to the

extent that the amounts are determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a
reasonable, systematic method of deterrnining their existence, completeness, valuation, and collectability.

Receivables as of December 31, 2020 for the Town's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate including
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds

General

Fund

Nonma.ior

Funds Total
Water

Fund

Sewer

Funds Total

Receivables:

Accounts

I nt ergovernmental

Gross receivables

Less : allowance for uncollect ibles

Net total receivables

$ 253. I 70 $ 1.050

22.960
$2s4,220

22.960

277.t80
(77.637)

253.170 24,010

$ I t0,505 $ r30,403 s240,908

l10.50s 3t8,047 428.552

_q!!105_ ll_!&041 J428!2_
(77,637

$r75,533 $24,0r0 $r99.543
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Additions Deletions

NOTE 7_CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended Decernber 31,2020 is as follows:

Balance.

beginning

Govern mental activi ties:
At cost:

Not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in prog'ess

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Being depreciated:

Buildings and building impt'ovements

Vehicles

M achinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total alt capital assets

Less accumulaled dcpleciat ion:

Buildings and building improvenrents

Vehicles

M achinery and equipment

Infi'astructure

Total accumulated dep rcciat ion

Net book value, capital assets beingdcpreciated

Net book value, all governmental activilies capital assets

Busi ness-type activiti es:

At cost:

Not being dep reciated:

Land

Construction in p rog'ess

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Being depleciated:

Buildings and building improvenrents

M achinery and equipment

Infiastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated

Total all capital assets

Less accumulated dep rcciat ion :

Buildings and building inrp rovcrnents

M achinely and equiprnent

lnfi'astructure

Total accurrulated dep reciat ion

Net book value, capital asscts being clepreciatecl

Net book value, all business-type activities capital assets

$ 780,101

t96,626
$ r43,000

13,593

Balance,

ending

$ 923,101$

(2t0,219)

976,727 r 56,593 (210,219) 923,101

2,862,608

3,739,938

174,087

7 ,258,719

255,781

39,000

1,603,9t 1

(22s,000)

14,035,352 1,898,692 (22s,000) 1s,709,044

15,012,079 2,055,285 (435,219) 16,632,14s

2,862,608

3,'770,719

213,087

8,862,630

(528,258)

(r,9r8,254)
(84,0e7)

(4,040,782)

(6t,2e2)
(2t2,e41)

(e, r 88)

(r48,8r2)

(589,550)

( 1,906, r 95)

(93,2 8 5 )
(4,189,594)

225,000

(6,5'il,391) (432,233) 225,000 (6,7',18,624)
't,463,961

$8/40r88
1,466,459

Jl,o3!2_ _!qq42_ _I2{1Zt_

$ 9,894

78,1 8 1

$ $ $ 9,894

85,0596,878

88.075 6,878 94,953

2,841,560

2.024,t41
s.437 .1 I I

2,841,560

2,024,141

5,437,t t1

10,302,812

r 0,390,887

(2.050,633)

(1.827 .t t7)
(2.893.544)

10,302,812

6,878 10,397,765

(2t,9'77)

(50,962)

( r 02,585)

(2.072,610)

( r,878,079)
(2.996,t29)

(6.77 t,294) (t75,s24) (6.946,8 r 8)

3,53 1,518 (t7s,s24) 3.3 55.994

$3.619.593 $ (168,646) $
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Town based on their usage of the related assets. The amounts allocated to
each function are as follows:

Governmental activities:
Genelzrl governrnent

Public saf'ety

Highrvays and streets

Culture and recreation

Total dep reciation exp ense

Busi n ess-type activities:
Water

Sewer

Total depreciation exp ense

$ s 1,820

I 45,800

21 5,18 1

19,432

$ 432,233

$ 83,41 7

92,107

$ 175,524

NOTE 8 _ INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund Bultmces - The composition of interfund balances as of December3l ,2020 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund

Miscellaneous capital projects

Water

Sewer

Nonmaior'

Alnount
General

$ 4r6,355

The outstanding balances among funds result mainly frorn the tirne lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services

are provided or reimbursable expenditules occur', (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments

between funds are made.

Interfund Transfers - The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31,2020 is as follows:

Transfers In:

M iscellaneous

Cap ital Pro.iects

Fund

Transfers out:

Gencral I'und

Nonma.jor f'und

Total

$

r0.000

During the year, transfers al'e used to (l) rnove revenues fi'orn the fund with collection authority to the fund responsible for'

expenditure and (2) move general fund resources to provide an annual subsidy.

NOTE 9 _ INTERGOVERNMENTAL PAYABLES

Arnounts due to other governments at December 31,2020, consist of the following

Fiduciary

Funds
-f 

axes due 1o the Nervlouncl Area Scltool I)istrict

$ 65,869

44,240

280,225

26,021

General

Fund

Water

Fund

Sewer

Fund

Nonmajor

Fund Total

$ 2s,947 $ r,254 $ 14,846 $ 57,198 $ 99,245

10,000

$ 10,000 $ 2s,947 $ r,254 $ 14,846 $ s7,r98 $ 109,245
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NOTE 10 _ DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources ale as follows:

Governmental

Activities

Business-type Activities and

Proprietary Funds

1,501,592

25,392

$ I,526,984

Water

Fund

80,678

1,364

$ 82,042

$ 64,213

1,086

$ 65,299

Sewer

Fund Totals

Amounts related to pensions. see Note l5
Amounts relatecl to OPEI]. see Note l6

Total deferred outflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources are as follows

Property taxes not collected within 60 days offiscal year-end

Property taxes collected in advance ofeligible warrant

Grants and donations received in advance ofrelated expenditures

Amounts lelated to pensions, see Note l5
Amounts related to OPEB, see Note l6

Total deferred inflows ofresources

$ $ r 44,891

2,450

$ 147,341

Business-type Activities and

Proprietary Funds

Governmental

Activities
General

Fund

Water

Fund

Sewer

Fund Totals

$

10,497

9,000

231,695

1, 109

$ 2s2,301

s 166,262 $

10,497

9,000

$ $

- 12,448 9,908 22,356

- 60 47 107
-$ *Jrt T "J* T t,q55 _s -,^"

NOTE 11 _ LEASE COMMITMENT

On Novenrber 25,2019, the Town of Bristol (the Town), the lessor, entered into a lease agreement with BP Bristol LLC
(Barrington Power), the lessee. As the lessor, the Town agreed to lease the lessee a portion of the property at 180 Ayers Island

Road for aterm of 25 years (one year with twenfy-four renewals periods), with reasonable access rights across said property, for
the purpose of construction, operating and maintaining a solar powered electric generation facility. Through a Power Purchase

Agreement (PPA), the Town will receive 100% of the electric power generated by the facility. The lessee will sign a PILOT
agreement which will be consistent with statewide standards. The rate paid for the electricity generated by the facility will be

initially set at 9.75 cents per kilowatt hour. After the first full year of operation, the rate paid will rise at the rate of 1.50Yo per

year and each year thereafter during the terrn of this agreement. The lessee will be entitled to any financial benefits that accrue

to ownership of the facility. The lessor will have two options to buy out the facility, one at the end of the sixth year of operation

and the other at the end of the fifteenth year. The price for the buyout will be set by an independent appraiser mutually agreed

upon by the parties and in conformity with the criteria set by the Intemal Revenue Service for an "arm length" transaction.

NOTE 12 * CAPITAL LEASES

The Town has entered into certain capital lease agreements under which the related equipment will becorne the property of the

Town when all the terms of the lease agreements are Inet.

Present Value

Standard of Remaining

Interest Payments as of
Rate Decernber 31.2020

Cap ital lease obligations:

Pumper/tankcr Fire Truck
-l'ractor

'l'otal cap ital leasc oblignlions

$2.67o/o

4.24Yo

69,077

9 r,108
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Leased equipurent undelthe capital leases, included in capital assets, is as follows:

Governmental

Activities
Vehicles:

Punrper/tanker Fire Truck
Tractor

'l'otal equipnrent

Less : accunrulated dep leciation
'folal capilal lease vehicles

$

$

445,3 88

l 60,000

605,3 88

I 05,080

s 00,308

The annual requirements to amor-tize the capital leases payable as of December 31,2020, including interest payrnents, are as

follows:
Fiscal Year Ending Governrnental

December 31. Activities

2021

2022

2023

Total lequirernents

Less: interest

Present value of remaining payments

$ 90,703

20,242

60,241

1',71 ,186
Ir,00t

$ I 60,1 85

Amortization of lease equipment under capital assets is included with depreciation expense

NOTE 13 _ SHORT-TERM DEBT

Changes in the Town's shofi-tenn operational and capital borrowings during the year ended December 3 1 , 2020, consisted of the

following:

Original Interest Balance Balance

Covernmental Activities lssue Rate January 1,2020 Aclditions Deletions December'31,2020

Taxanticipationnotel $1,000,000
Tar anticipation note 2 1,250,000

Tar anticipation note 3 I,500,000

General obligrtion note I 1,400,000

Ta,r anticipation note 4 500,000

Total short-term borrowings $ 5,650,000

$ 750,000 $

r,500,000

$ 750,000 $ 4,650,000 $(3,9oo,ooo) $ 1,500,000

The purpose of the short-time borrowings was to provide for interim financing of general fund operations and resources for
various capital improvement projects.

1.82%

1.99%

t.75%
1.65%

1.65%

1,250,000

1,500,000

r,400,000

500,000

$ (750,000)

( 1,250,000)

( r ,400,000)
(500,000)

NOTE 14 _ LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Changes in the Town's long-term liabilities consisted of the following for the year ended Decernber 31,2020

Balance Balance

January l. 2020 Additions Reductions December 3l,2020
Govern me ntal activiti es:

Ilonds/notes payable

Cap ital leases

Cornp ensatecl absences

Abatcnrent sett lement liabilitv *

Net pension liability
Nct other posternployrncnt benelits

'l-otal long-tcrrr liabilit ics

$ r,133,367

243,458

227.768

t34,762

3.720.875

444.682

962"658

1 60,1 85

263,007

80,85 7

5,295.488

424.526

Due Within
One Year

$

35"239

t.574.6t3

$ (r70,70e) $

(83.273)

(53.905)

(20. r 56)

s 172.'t55

85.456

53.905

$ 5.904.9 r2 $ 1.609.852 $ 7. t86.72t $ 312.1 l6

40
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Long-term I i a b i I it i es cont inu ed :

Busi ness-type activities:
Bonds/notes p ay able

Conrp ensatecl absences

Net pension liability
Net other postemployment beneflts

Tot al long-terrr liabilit ies

Balance

January 1,2020 Additions Reductions

Ilalance

December 31,2020
Due Within
One Year

$ I I7,314$ 1,264,'748

38,176

359,032

44,935

3,447

15r,936

109

r, r 48-83 8

4t.623

5 t0.968

42.5t7

$

$ 1,706,89r S 1ss,492

$ (r r5,9r0) $

(2,s27)

$ (r r8,437) $ t,743,946 $ il7,314

xlrr fiscal year2019, the Torvn settled some of its ongoing abatements lvitlr Eversource (PSNH). As a result, the Town has agreed to pay abatement refunds to
Eversource in senri-annual installnrenls of$26,953, which comrnenced on December 1,2019 with the last payment scheduled to be made on.luly 1, 2022. The
amount slill outstanding as olDecember 31,2020 is reported as a long-term liability on the Statement of Net Position.

Long-term bonds/notes are comprised of the following:

Govern mental activities:
Original Issue M aturity Interest Outstanding at

Amount Date Date Rate % December 31,2020
General obligation bonds/notes payable:

Library Pro.ject

Central Square Pro.ject

Town Hall Building
Total

$

Busi ness-type activiti es

$ 888,000

$ 415,650

$ 649,637

Amount

2022

202'7

2029

Maturity
Date

2012

20t2
2018

2.12

2.54

3.75

t77,600

190,r63

594,895

$ 962,658

Original Issue

Date

lnterest

Rate o%

Outstancling at

December 31.2020

$

$ r,r48,838

The annual requirements to arnortize all general obligation bonds/notes outstanding as of December 31,2020, including interest
payments, al'e as follows:

Govern mental activities:

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31, Principal lnterest '[otal

General obligation bonds/notes payable:

SRF Drinking Water

Central Square Plo.ject

Wastewater Dewateling Treatment Facility
2019 Bond Rel'unding

Total

$ 1,19r,000

$ 399,350

$ 305,000

$ 429,500

2012

2012

2017

2019

2031

2027

2024

2039

3.r0
2.54

2.55

J.JJ

3 85,980

t90,t72
t'74,286

398,400

s t72,755
I 74,888

88,297

90,592

92,966

343" r 60

$ 203,758

201,t73
r 09.785

109,082

t08,377

372,848

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026-2029

l-otals $ 962.658

$ 3l,003
26,285

2t,488
18,490

t5.4tI
29,688

$ 142-365 $ r, r05,023

41

(Continued)



TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEIT HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3I,2O2O

General obl igation bonds/notes outstanding continued:

Business-type activities:

Fiscal Year Ending

Decernber 3 I, Principal Intelest Total

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026-2030

2031-2035

2036-2039

Totals

$ 117,314

119,644

120,603

122,894

81 ,04 r

3 55,048

160,293

72,001

$ 39,789

36,332

32,831

29,130

24,056

8 r ,448
26,762

3,840

$ 1 57,1 03

155,976

153,434

1s2,024

r 05,097

436,496

l 87,05 5

7 s,841

$ 1,148,838 $ 274,188 $ 1,423,026

All debt is general obligation debt of the Town, which is backed by its full faith and credit, and will be repaid fi'om general

governmental revenues.

NOTE 15 _ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description -The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) is a public employee retirelnent system that

administers a cost-sharing multiple-ernployer defined benefit pension plan (Pension Plan), a component unit of the State of New
Harnpshire, as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for
Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25. The Pension Plan was established in 196'7 by RSA 100-4:2 and is

qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Pension Plan is a

contributory, defined benefit plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement benefits to tnetnbers and their
beneficiaries. Substantially all full-time State employees, public school teachers and administrators, pennanent firefighters and

pennanent police officers within the State are eligible and required to pafticipate in the Pension Plan. The System issues a

publicly available financial repoft that may be obtained by writing the New Hampshire Retirement Systetn, 54 Regional Drive,
Concord, NH 03301.

Bene.fits Providetl - Benefit formulas and eligibility requirernents forthe Pension Plan are set by state law (RSA 100-A). The

Pension Plan is divided into two membership groups. State and local employees and teachers belong to Group L Police and

firefighters belong to GroLrp II.

Group I benefits are provided based on creditable service and average final salary for the highest of either three or five years,

depending on when service commenced.

Group II benefits are provided based on age, years of creditable service and benefit multiplier depending on vesting status as of
1l1l12. The maximurn retirement allowance for Group Il rnernbers vested by 111112 (45 years of age with 20 years of service or
age 60 regardless of years of creditable service) is the average final compensation multiplied by 2.5% multiplied by creditable

service. For Group II rnernbers not vested by 111ll2 the benefit is calculated the sarne way, but the rrrultiplier used in the

calculation will change depending on age and years of creditable service as follows:

Years of Creditable Service as of l17ll2 Minimum Age Minimum Service Benefit Multiplier

At least 8 but less than l0 years 46 21 2.4%

At least 6 but less than 8 years 47 22 2.3Yo

At least 4 but less than 6 years 48 23 2.2%

Less than 4 years 49 24 2.1%

Mernbers of both groups may qualify forvested deferred allowances, disability allowatrces and death beneflt allowances, sub.iect

to meeting various eligibility requilements. Benefits are based on AFC or earnable cornpensation and/or service.
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Contributions - The Systern is financed by contributions fi'orn both the employees and the Town. Mernber contribution rates al'e

established and rnay be arnended by the State legislature while ernployer contribution rates al'e set by the System trustees based

on an actuarial valuation. Group I (ernployee and teacher) members are required to contribute JYo of earnable compensation and

Group II (police and fire) members contribute 11.55% and 11.80% respectively. For fiscal year 2020, the Town contributed
24.11% for police, 26.43% for fire and 10.88% for other employees. The contribution requirement for the fiscal year 2020 was
5408,425, which was paid in full.

Pensiort Liubilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, ond Deferred Inflotus of Resources Rekiled to
Pensiorrs - At December 31,2020 the Town reported a liability of $5,806,456 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town's proporlion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection ofthe Town's long-term share ofcontributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of
all participating towns and school districts, actuarially detennined. At June 30,2020, the Town's proportion was .09078041%o

which was an increase of .00598829ohfrom its proporlion measured as of June 30,2019.

For the year ended Decernber 31, 2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $913,177. At December 31, 2020 the Town
reported defered outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Def'erled Def'en'ed

Outflows of lnllows of
Resources Resources

Changes in propoftion

Changes in assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual investment

earnings on pension plan investments

Differences between expected and actual experience

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

s 346,466

574,374

359,r36
r s6,802

209,705

$ 19r,706

62,34s

$ r,646,483 $ 254,0s r

The $209,705 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results frorn the Town contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended Decernber 3 1, 2021 . Other
alrounts repofted as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31.

s 236,285

321,269

302,251

322,922

$ t,182,727

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

Totals

Actuoriul Assuntptions -The collective total pension liabilify was based on the following assr.rrnptions:

Inflation: 2.0%
Salary increases: 5.6%o average, including inflation
Wage inflation: 2.15% (2.25% for teachers)
Investrnent rate of return: 6.15o/, net of pension plan investrnent expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Health Retiree Morrality Tables with credibility adjustments for each group (Police
and Fire combined)and projected fully generational rnortality irnplovernents using Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2020, valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study, which was for the period July l, 2016 - June 30, 2019.
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Lottg-lerm Rates of Relurn - The long-terrn expected rate of return on perrsion plan investment was selected fi'om a best

estimate range deterrnined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real retttrn range is

calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-tenn expected rate of return by

weighting the expected future real rate of retulx net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by

adding expected inflation.

Following is a table presenting target allocations and geometric real rates ofreturn for each asset class:

We ighted average long-tern.r

expected real rate of return

Asset Class

Large Cap Equities

SmalUMid Cap Equities

Total domestic equity

Int'l Equities (unhedged)

Emerging Int'l Equities

Total international equity

Core Bonds

Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income

Absolute Return Fixed Income

Total fixed income

Private equity

Private debt

Total alternative investments

Real estate

Total

Target

Allocation 2020

3.',7tyo

4.15%

3.96%

6.20Yo

0.42v,

1.66%

0.92%

7.1'lYo

4.81o

2.95Yo

22.s0%

7.50%

30.00%

13.00%

7.00%

20.00%

9.00%

10.00%

6.00%

25.00%

10.00%

5.00Yo

15.00o/o

r0.00%

100.00%

Discourrt Rate - The discount rate used to measure the collective total pension liability was 6.15o/o. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan mernber contributions will be Inade at the current contribution rate and that

ernployer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the

member rate. For purposes of the projection, mernber contributions and ernployer service cost contributions are projected based

on the expected payroll of cunent members only. Employer contributions are determined based on the Pension Plan's actuarial

funding policy as required by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan's fiduciary net position was

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-tenn
expected rate of return on Pension Plan investment was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to detennine the

collective total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Town's Proportiottute Share of the Net Pensiou Liobility to Changes in the Discounl Rnte - The following
table presents the Town's proporlionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.75o/o as well as

what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-

percentage point lower (5.15%) or I -percentage point higher (1 .7 5%) than the current rate:

Actuarial Current Single

Valuation loZ Decrease Rate Assuntption lolo lncrease

f)ate 5.750 6.'75% 7.75%

June 30, 2020 $4,408,717 $ 5,806"456 $ 7.516.997

Pensiott PIun Fitluciury Net Posiliott - Detailed inforrnation about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued New Harnpshire Retirement Systern Cost-sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Pension PIan financial
Ieport.
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Allocation of deferred outflows of resources, net pension liability and deferred inflows of resources is as follows:

Net

Pension

Liability

Governrnental act ivities

Business-ty p e activities

Total

Def'erred

Outllows of
Resources

$ r,50r,592
r 44,89 I

s 5,295,488

5 I 0.968

Defen'ed

Inflows ol
Resources

$ 2X.69s
22.356

$ r,646,483 $ 5,806.456 $ 254,05 r

NOTE 16 _ POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

16-A New Hnmpsltire Retirement System (NHRS)

PIun Description - The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) is a public employee retirement system

which adrninisters a cost-sharing multiple-employer other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan. For additional system

information, please refer to the 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be found on the system's website at

www.nhrs.org.

BeneJits Provided - Benefit amounts and eligibility requirements for the OPEB Plan are set by State law (RSA 100-A:52, RSA
100-A:52-a and RSA 100-A:52-b), and members are designated in statute by type. The four membership types are Group II,
Police Officers and Firefighters; Group I, Teachers; Group I, Political Subdivision Employees; and Group I, State Employees.
The OPEB Plan provides a medical insurance subsidy to qualified retired members. The medical insurance subsidy is a payment

rnade by NHRS to the former employer or its insurance administrator toward the cost of health insurance for a qualified retiree,
his/her qualified spouse, and his/her certified dependent children with a disability who are living in the household and being
cared for by the retiree. If the health insurance premium amount is less than the medical subsidy amount, then only the health

insurance premium amount will be paid. If the health insurance premiurn alnount exceeds the medical subsidy alnount, then the

retiree or other qualified person is responsible for paying any porlion that the employer does not pay.

Group I benefits are based on creditable service, age, and retirement date. Group ll benefits are based on hire date, age, and

creditable service. The OPEB plan is closed to new entrants.

Maximum rnedical subsidy rates paid during fiscal year 2020 were as follows:

For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare, the arnounts were $375.56 for a single-person plan and $75 1.l2for a

two-person plan.

For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare, the arnounts were $236.84 for a single-person plan and $473.68 for a

two-person plan.

Contributions - The OPEB Plan is funded by allocating to the 401(h) subtrust the lessor of:25o/o of all employer contributions
made in accordance with RSA 100-A:16 or the percentage of employer contributions detennined by the actuary to be the

rninimum rate necessary to rnaintain the benefits provided under RSA 100-A:53-b, RSA 100-A:53-c, and RSA 100-A:53-d. For

fiscal year 2018, the minimum rates deterrnined by the actuary to rnaintain benefits were the lesser of the two options and were

used to determine the employer contributions due to the 401(h) subtrust. The State Legislature has the authority to establish,

arnend and discontinue the contribution requirernents of the OPEB Plan. Adrninistrative costs are allocated to the OPEB Plan

basedonfundbalances. Forfiscal year2020,the Towncontribuled3.660/o forpoliceandfire, and0.29%o forotheremployees.
The corrtribution requirernent for the fiscal year 2020 was $45,140, which was paid in full.

OPEB Liubilities, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflovs of Resources and Deferred Inflotus of Resources Related to OPEB - At
December 31,2020, the Town repofied a liability of $419,819 for its proportionate share of tlre net OPEB liability. The net

OPEB f iability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was

determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town's proporlion of the net OPEB liability was based on a projection
of tlre Town's long-terrn share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating towns
and school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30,2020, the Town's proportion was .09591211o/" which was an increase of
.00043154% from its proportion rneasuled as of June 30,2019.
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For the year ended December 31,2020, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $37,194. At Decernber 31,2020, the Town
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

De I'erred De1'erred

Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Changes in proportion
Changes in assumptions

Differences between expected and actual expelience

Contributions subsequent to the nreasurenrent date

Total

I,216

The $23,333 repofted as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB results from the Town contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended December 31,2021. Other
amounts repofted as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in

OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31.

$$ 239

2,699

1,57 t

23,333

$ 27,842 $ r,216

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafier

Totals

$ r,84 r

465

554

433

s3,293

Actuarial Assumpliorts - The collective total OPEB liability was based on the following actuarial assurnptions:

Inflation: 2.0%
Salaryincreases: 5.6ohavercge,includinginflation
Wage inflation: 2.75 oh (2.25%) for teachers

Investment rate of return:' 6.7 5 o/o net of OPEB plan investtnent expense, including inflation for detennining solvency
contributions

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Health Retiree Mortality Tables with credibilify adjustments for each group (Police
and Fire cornbined) and projected fully generational mofiality irnprovements using Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2019, valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience

study, which was for the period July I , 2016 - June 30, 20 19.

Long-lernt Rates of Return - The long-term expected late of return on OPEB plan investment was selected from a best estimate
range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real return range is calculated
separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-tenn expected rate of return by weighting the

expected future real rate of retunt net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation.
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Following is a table presenting target allocations and geometric real rates of return for each asset class

Weighted avelage long-term

expected real rate of leturn

Lalge Cap Equities

SnralVMid Cap Equities

Total domestic equity

Int'l Equities (unhedged)

Emerging Int'l Equities

Total international equity

Core Bonds

Global Multi.Sector Fixed Income

Absolute Return Fixed Income

Total fixed income

Private equity

Private debt

Total alternative investrnents

Real estate

Total

Asset Class

Target

Albcation 2020

3.7 lo/o

4.t5%

3.96Yo

6.20o/n

0.42%

1.660

0.92Yr

7.71%

4.8tyo

2.95Yo

22.50Yo

7.50y,

30.00v,

13.000

7.00Yo

20.00%

9.00y,

r0.00%

6.00Yo

25.00Yo

r0.00%

5.00Yo

15.00vo

r0.00%

r00.00%

DiscountRate-Thediscountrateusedtomeasurethetotal OPEBliabilityasofJune30,2020,was6.750. Theprojectionof
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made under the current statutes RSA

100-A:16 and 100-A:53. Based on those assurnptions, the OPEB Plan's fiducialy net position was projected to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan rnernbers. Therefore, the long-tenx expected rate of return on OPEB Plan

investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the collective total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Town's Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liabilily lo Changes in the Discount Rote - The following table
presents the Town's proportionate share of the OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.75oh as well as what the
Town's proportionate share of the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage point
lower (5.75%) or l-percentage point higher (1 .15%) than the current rate:

Actuarial Current Single

Valuation l%o Decrease Rate Assumption lo% lncrease

Date 5.'/5% 6.75%o 7.75%
June 30,2020 $ 455,879 $ 419,819 $ 388,51 I

Sensitivity of the Totttrt's Proportionate SItore of the OPEB Liuhility to Changes in lhe Healiltcare Cost Trend Assunrytion -
GASB'No.75 r'equires the sensitivity of the OPEB liability to the healthcare cost trend assutnption. Since the medical subsidy

benefits are fixed stipends, there is no sensitivity to changes in the healthcare cost trend assumption.

OPEB PIan Fitluciary Net Positiott - Detailed inforrnation about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued New Harnpshire Retirernent Systern Cost-Sharing Multiple Ernployer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan financial
report.
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Allocation of deferred outflows of resources, net OPEB liability and deferred inflows of resources is as follows:

Def'erred Net Def-erred

Outflorvs of OPEB Inf]orvs of
Resoulces Liability Resources

Covernmental activities S 2j.3-'/2 $382S?5 $ lJ09
Business-type activities 2,450 36,944 107

Total $ 27,842 $419,819 $ 1,216

16-8 Town of Bristol Retiree Healtlt Benefit Progranr

Plan Descriplion - GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, requires governments to account for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) on an accrual basis, rather than on a pay-

as-you-go basis. The effect is the recognition of an actuarially determined expense on the Statement of Activities when a future
retiree earns their postemployrnent benefits, rather than when they use their postemployment benefit. The posternployrnent

benefit liability is recognized on the Statement of Net Position over time.

BeneJits Provitled - The Town provides postemployment healthcare benefits for certain eligible retirees.

Employees Covered by BeneJit Terrus - At December 31,2020 the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or benellciaries currently receivingbenefit payments 6

Active employees 33

Total participants coverecl by OPEB plan 39

Totrtl OPEB Liability - The Town's total OPEB liability of $47,223 was measuled as of December 31,2020, and was

detennined by an actuarial valuation ofthat date.

Actuarial Assumptiorts ond Other Inputs - The total OPEB liability of $47,223 in the December 31, 2020, actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the rneasuremellt,

unless othelwise specifi ed:

Discount Rate: 3.00%

llealthcale Cost Trend Rates:

Current Year l'rend 4.90o/o

Second Year Trend 4.80%

Decremcnl 0.10%

Ultirnate Trend 4.30%

Year [Jltimate'lrend is Reached 2030

Salarv Increases: 3.00%

The discount rate was based on the index provided by Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation Indexbased on the 20-year AA
municipal bond rate as of July 1,2016.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Health Participant Table Projected l0 years using Projection Scale AA.
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Cltonges in the Total OPEB Liability

December 3 l,
20t9 2020

$231,962 $71,042OPEB liability beginningof year

Changes fbr the year:

Service cost

Interest

Assumption changes and dillerence between

actrral and expected experience

OPEB liability end of year

Governmental activit ies

Br"rsirress-ty p e act ivities
Total

54,540

1 1,460

s4,540

5,023

Q:26te2o) G3,3!4-T_7TW W
Sensitivity of tlrc Town's OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rsle - The December 31, 2020, actuarial valuation was

prepared using a discount rate of 3.\Yo. If the discount rate were loh higher than what was used the OPEB liability would
decrease to $46,999. If the discount rate were l7o lower than what was used the OPEB liability would increase to $47,451.

Discount Rate

lo% Decrease 3.00% lolo Increase

IoraloPEB Liability s 47,451 $47,223 $ 46,999

Sensitivity of lhe Town's OPEB Liability lo Chonges in the Healilrcare Cost Trend Rotes - The December 31, 2020,actuarial
valuation was prepared using an initial trend rate of 4.9oh. If the trend rate were 1% higher than what was used the OPEB
liability would increase to $47,448. If the trend rate were 7o/o lower than what was used the OPEB liability would decrease to

s46,997.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

l% Decrease 4.90% 1olo Increase

TotalOPEB Liability s 46,997 $47,223 s 47,448

Allocation of net OPEB liabilitv is as follows

Net
OPEB

Liability
$ 41,651

5,572
s 47,223

NOTE 17 _ ENCUMBRANCE,S

The outstanding encurnbrances are alnounts needed to pay any cornrnitrnents related to purchase orders and contracts that remain
unperformed at Decernber 31,2020 and are as follows:

General f'und:

Genelal government

I'l ighrvays and streets

Cultule and recreation

Capilal outlay

Total encumbrances

$ r3,000

266.230

6.400

28.351
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NOTE ]8 _ STATE AID TO WATER POLLUTION PROJECTS

The Town is due to receive from tlre State of New Hampshire the following alnounts in the form of state aid to water pollution
projects:

Bonds lssued Amount

Under New Hampshire RSA Chapter 486, the Town receives from the State of New Harnpshire a percentage of the arrnual

amortization charges on the original costs resulting from the acquisition and construction of sewage disposal facilities. At
December 31,2020 the Town is due to receive the following annual amounts to offset debt payments:

Fiscal Yeal Ending

December 31, Principal Interest Total

C-692 Chlorination / Dechlorination Facilities

C-8 54 Wast ewat er Tl'eatment P lant I rnp rovement s

Total

$ 82,270

2t5,962

s295232

$187 ,644 $ 5 r,1 93 $ 238,837

202t

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026-2030

2031-2035

2036-2040

204t-2042

Total

$ 7,796

7,942

8,032

8,216

8,524

45,728

44,8 r 0

39,505

t7,091

$ 4,570

4,401

4,217

4,016

3,803

15,641

9,325

4,687

533

$ r2,366

12,343

12,249

12,232

12,327

61,369

54,135

44,t92

t7,624

NOTE 19 _NET POSITION

Net position repofted on the governrnent wide and fiduciary funds Statements of Net Position at Decernber 31,2020 include the

following:

Government-wide Financial Statements

Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities
Fiduciary

FundsTotal

Net investment in capital assets:

Net book value, all governmental activities capital assets

Less:

General obligation bonds/notcs payable

Capital leases payable

Total net investrnent in capital assets

Restricted net position:
Permanent fund principal
Permanent f'r"rncl income

Library

Individuals. organizat ions ancl ot her govemmcnt s

Total restlicted rret posit iorr

Unrestricted

Total net position

8,730,678 2,302,109 n,032,787

51,420

4"600

r 98.364
318,745

254.384 2s4,384 318,'745

(2,837,098) |,866,241 (970,857)

$ 6,147.964 $ 4,r68,350 $ 10,316,314 $318,745

$ 9,853,521 s 3,4s0,947

( r,1 48,838)

$ 13,304,468 $

(2,tt1,496)
(r60,r85)

(962,6s8)
(r60,r85)

51.420

4,600

r 98,364
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NOTE 20 _ GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

Governrnental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at Decernber 31,2020 include the following;

M iscellaneous Total
General CapitalPl'o.iects Nonmajor Governrnental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

Nonspen dable:

Prep aid itenrs

Permanent fund - principal balance

Total nonspendable fund balance

Restri cted:
Library

Permanent - income balance

Total restricted fund balance

Committed:
Expendable trust funds

N on-lasp ing ap p rop riat ions

Police details

Conservation

Transfer station

Arnbulance

Total committed fund balance

Assigned:
Encurnbrances

Abatenrent cont ingency

Other special revenue funds

Total assigred fund balance

Unassigned (deficit)

Total governmental fund balances (deficit)

$

5t,420
21,642 5t,420 73,062

202,964 202,964

5l5,798

512,939 6,87s 5r9,8r4
7'73,847 (65,869)

$1,824,226 $ (65,869) $424,765 $ 2,183,122

NOTE 21 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJASTMENT

NetpositionatJanuary l,2020,wasrestatedtogiveretroactiveeffecttothefollowingpriorperiodadjustment:

Businesstype Sewer

Activities Fund

s 21,642 $ $ 2t,642
5l,420

198,364

4,600

198,364

4,600

490,373

2s,425

s,464

2,324

32,677

123,041

490,373
')\ l)\

s,464

2,324

32,677

123,041

I 63,506 679.304

3r3,98r
r 98,958

6,875

3r3,98r
r 98,958

6,87 s

707,978

'fo record long-term State aid receivable, not previously reported

Net position. as previously reported
Net position, as restated

$ 159,688

4,060,3s4
$ 159,688

2,098,776

$ 4,220,042 S 2,2s8,464

NOTE 22 _ RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or ornissions;
injuries to errployees; or natural disasters. During fiscal year 2020, the Town was a rnerxber of the New Hampshire Public Risk
Management Exchange (Prirnex3) Workers' Cornpensation and Properly/Liability Programs.

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex3) Workers' Compensation and Property/Liability Prograrns are

pooled risk rnanagenient progralns under RSAs 5-B and 28 | -A. Coverage was provided from January 1,2020, to Decernber 3 l,
2020,by Primexi, which retained $1,000,000 of each workers'compensation loss, $500,000 of each liability loss, and $200,000
of each property loss. The Board has decided to self-insure the aggregate exposure and has allocated funds based on actuarial
analysis for that purpose. The workers' colxpensation section of the self-insurance rnernbership agreement pennits Prirrex3 to
rnake additional assessrnents to members should there be a deficiency in contributions for any rxember year, not to exceed the

5l



TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2O2O

member's al.lnual conh'ibution. GASB Statement No. l0 requires mernbers of a pool with a sharing risk to disclose if such an

assessrrent is probable, and a reasonable estimate of the amount, if any. ln 2020 the Town paid $68,199 and $14,121
respectively, to Prirnex for property, liability, and worker's compensation. At this time, Primex3 foresees no likelihood of any

additional assessment for this or any prior year'.

The Town continues to carry comrnercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting fi'orn these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurarrce coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 23 _ CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are various legal claims and suits pending against the Town which arose in the normal course of the governrnent's
activities. In the opinion of rnanagement, the ultirnate disposition of these various claims and suits will not have a material effect
on the financial position of the Town.

The Town participates in various federal grant prograrns, the principal of which are subject to prograrn cornpliance audits
pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the government's compliance with applicable grant requirements
will be established at a future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be

determined at this time, although the government anticipates such amounts , if any, will be irnmaterial.

NOTE 24 _ COVID-(q

As a result of the spread of COVID-19, Coronavirus, economic uncertainties continue. The duration of these uncertainties and

the ultimate financial effects cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

On March 21 ,2020, the United States Federal Governrnent established the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Econonric Security
(CARES) Act in response to the economic downfall caused by the COVID-19 pandernic. This Act requires that the payment
from these funds be used only to cover expenses that; are necessary expenditures incured due to the public health emergency
with respect to COVID-19; were not accounted for in the budget approved for2020; and were incuned during the period that
begins on March 1,2020, and ends on December 31,2020. The Town was awarded a portion of this federal funding totaling
$1,729,000. InadditiontofundingfromtheCARESAct,thereareseveral otherfederal andstategrantsavailable.

The full extent of the financial impact cannot be deterrnined as of the date of the financial statements.

NOTE 25 _ TAX ABATEMENTS

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77 , Tax Abatentent Discl.osures, defines tax abaternents as a reduction
in tax revenues that results fi'om an agreement between one or more governments and an individual or entity in which (a) one or
more governrnents promise to forgo tax revenues to which they are otherwise entitled and (b) the individual or entity promises to
take a specific action after tlre agreernent has been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits
the governrnents or the citizens of those govemments. There were no tax abatement prograrns identified that would require
disclosure.

NOTE 26 _ SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements al'e

issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provided additional evidence about conditions that existed
at the balance sheet date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date, but arose after
the date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 1,2021, the date the Decernber 31,2020 financial
statemeltts were available to be issued, and the following event occurred that require recognition or disclosule:

At the 202 I Annual Town Meeting, held on March 13,2021 , the residents of the Town approved two
warrant articles appropriating the use of December 31,2020, surplus (fund balance) to set aside funds for
contingency purposes($25,000) and to fund the Patriotic, Recreation, and Special Events Expendable
Tlust Fund ($12,000).
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EXHIBIT G
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Sclredule of tlte Town's Proporiionate Share of Net Pension Liability
New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sltaring Multiple Employer DeJined BeneJit Plan

For tlte Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020

December 3 1,

2015 2016 20t7 20t8
Town's:

Proportion of the net pension liability

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

Covered payroll

Proportionate share ofthe net pension tiability
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe
total p ension liability

202.23o/o 282.36Yo 237.06Yo 238.46% 202.10% 263.04o/o

65.47Yo 58.30% 62.66% 64.73Yo 65.59Yr 58.7204

0.085421260/0

$ 3,383,986

s t,673,364

0.08727626%

$ 4,640,998

$ r,643,663

0.0837856 l%

s 4,t20,569

$ 1,738,206

0.09081510%

$ 4,372,952

$ r,833,863

2019

0.08479218yo

s 4,079,907

s 2,0t8,727

2020

0.09078047%

$ 5,806,456

$ 2,207,475
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EXHIBIT H
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of Town Contributions - Pensions

New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Efttployer DeJined Benefit Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 3 I, 2020

December 31,

2015 2016 2017 20r8

s 302,864 S 279,ss7 S 3s29s2 S 373,49r $ 369,000 S 403,285

2019 2020

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contributions

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Town's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

302,864 279,557 352,952 373,491 369,000 403,285

$ $ $ $ $ $

$ 1,716,043 $ 1,572,353 $ 1,917,358 $ 1,973,785 52,149,494 52,244,917

l7.65yo 17.78yo 18.41% 18.92% 17.17o/o 17.96%



TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

NOTE TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION _

PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2O2O

Schedule of the Town's Proportionate Sltare of Net Pensiott Liobility nnd
Schedule of Town Contributiotts - Pensions

As required by GASB Staternent No. 68, and as amended by GASB Staternent No. 71, Exhibits G and H represent the actuarial
detennined costs associated with the Town's pension plan at Decernber 31,2020. These sclredules are presented to illustrate the
requirement to show infonnation for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is cornpiled, inforuation is presented for those
years for which inforrnation is available.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2020:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Remaining Arnortization Period 20 years beginning July 1, 2019 (30 years beginning July 1,2009)

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smooth market for funding purposes: 20To corridor

Price Inflation 2.5o/o per year

Wage Inflation 3 .25o/o per year (3 .00o/o for teachers) in Ihe 2011 valuation

Salary Increases 5.60/o Average, including inflation

Municipal Bond Rate 2.45% per year

Investment Rate of Return 1 .25oh per year, net of investment expenses, including inflation

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Based on

the 2010-21 5 experience study.

Morlality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant and Employee generational rnortality tables for males and

females with credibility adjustments, adjusted for fully generational mortality irnprovements
using Scale MP-2015, based on the 2010-2015 expelience study.

Other Information:

Notes The board has adopted new assumptions based on the 2015-2019 experience study effective
for employer contributions in the 2022-23 bienn ium.
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EXHIBIT I
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW ITAMPSHIRE

Schedule of the Town's Proportionile Share of the Nel Olher Postenrplolms,rt BenertE Liobilil.y

New Hampshire Retirement Syslem Cost Shoring Multiple Employer DeJined BeneJit Plon
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 3l 2020

December 3I

2016 20t'l 201 8 2019 2020

0.06821658% 0.06378766% 0.r03859r6% 0.09547517% 0.09591271%Town's proportion of the net OPEB liability

Town's proportionate share ofthe net OPEB

liability (asset)

Town's covered payroll

Town's propoltionate share of the net OPEB

liability (asset) as a percentage ofits covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total

OPEB liability

$ 330,240

$ 1,643,663

$ 29r,659 $

$ r,738,206 $

4'15,516 $

r,833,863 $

418,5'.74 $

2,018,727 $

419,819

2,207,475

20.090/o

5.21%

16.78%

7.9t%

25.93%

7.53%

20.73%

7.75%

19.02%

'1 .74yo

The Notes to the Required Supplernentary Information - Other Postemployrnent Benefit Liability is an integral part of this

schedule.
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EXHIBIT J
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of Tov'n Conlribulions - Other Poslemplo)tnrent Benelits
Neu: Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Emploler pe/ined BeneJit Plnn

For the Fiscol Year Etrded Decemher 3l , 2020

Decenrber 3 l,
2016 201'7 20t8 20t9 2020

Contractually lequired contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution

Contribution defi ciency (excess)

Town's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentago ofcovered payroll

$ 39,638 $ 37,807 $ 45,940 $ 44,439 $ 44,s20

3 9,63 8 37,807 45.940 44,439 44,520

$$ $-:
$ t,973,785

2.33010

$$

$ 1,s72,3s3 S r,9r7,358

2.s2% l.97Yo

$ 2,149,494 $ 2,244,917

2.07% 1.98%

The Notes to the Required Supplernentary lnforrnation - Other Posternployrnent Benefit Liability is an integral part of this
schedule.
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Scherlule of Chonges in the Town's Total Other Poslemplolntent Benelits LiobiliU tnd Reloted Ralios

Retiree Health Bene/it Prugranr

Forthe Fiscnl Yenr Ettded Deceml;er 3l 2020

December 31,

20t8 2019 2020

$ 334,416 $ 231,962 S 71,042OPEB liability, beginning of y ear

Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest

Assumption changes and difference between

actual and expected experience

OPEB liability, end of year

54,540

27,'795

54,540

11,460

54,540

5,023

(r84,789) (226,920) (83,382)

$ 231,962 $ '71,042 S 47,223

Covered payroll $2,586,106 $2,663,689 $2,767,090

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 8.97% 2.67% 1.71%

The Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Other Posternployrnent Benefit Liability is an integral part of this
schedule.
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TOI4/N OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION _

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3],2020

Schedule o.f the Towtt's Proportionate Share of Net Other Postemployment Benefits Linbility and
Schedule of Town Contributions - Other Postemployment Bene/its

As required by GASB Statement No. 75, Exhibits I and J represent the actuarial determined costs associated with the Town's
other posternployment benefits at December'31,2020. These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show

infonnation for l0 years. However, until a full I0-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which
information is available.

The following assumptions were changed in the current year:

o Reduced the assurned rate of investment returlt from 1 .25o/o to 6.1 5%

o Reduced the wage inflation from 3.25%o to 2.7 Soh (2.25% for teachers)

. Reduced price inflation from2.5ohto2l0yo

. Updated economic assumptions, including rnerit and longevity salary increases, disability rates, retirement rates, and

rnorlality tables (specifically the new public pension plan rnortality tables).

Methods and Assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method

Amoftization Method

Remaining Amoftization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Price Inflation

Wage Inflation

Salary Increases

Municipal Bond Rate

Investment Rate of Return

Funding Discount Rate

Retirement Age

Entry Age Norrnal

Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Not applicable under statutory funding

5-year smooth market: 20o/o corridor

2.5%o per year

3.25"/o per year (3.00o/o for teachers) in the 2017 valuation

5.6Yo Average, including inflation

2.450 per year

725% per year, net of OPEB plan investrnent expense, including inflation for detennining
solvency contributions

3.25% per year

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Based on

the 20 I 0-20 I 5 experience study.

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant and Employee generational mortality tables for males and

fernales with credibility adjustrnents, adjusted for fully generational mortality improvements
using Scale MP-20 15, based onthe2010-2015 experience study.

Mortality

Schedule of Changes in Town's Totol Other Postemployment BeneJits Liobility and Related Ratios

As required by GASB Statement No. 75, Exhibit K represents the actuarial determined costs associated with the Town's other

postemployment benefits at December 31,2020. The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show infonnation for
l0 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, infolrnation is presented for those years for which information is

available.
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SCHEDULE I
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

MajorGeneral Fund
Schedule of Estimoted ond Actuol Revenues (Nott-GAAP Budgetory Bnsis)

For lhe Fiscul Yeor Ettded December 31, 2020

Taxes:

Propefty

Yield

Payment in lieu of taxes

Interest and penalties on taxes

Total from taxes

Licenses, permits, and fees:

Business licenses, permits, and f'ees

M otor vehicle permit fees

Building permits

Other

Total from licenses, permits, and fees

Intergovernmental:

State:

Shared revenues

Meals and rooms distribution
Higfway block grant

Water pollution grants

State and federal forest land reimbursement

Flood control reimbursement

Other

Federal:

Other

Tot al from int ergovernment al

Charges for selvices:

Income from departments

M iscellaneous:

Interest on investments

Other

Total flom miscellaneous

Other financing sources:

Transfers in

Total revenues and other financing sources

Amounts voted from fund balance

Total revenues, other financing sources, and use of I'und balance

820,749 903,314 82,565

Estimated Actual

4,395,445 4,349,358

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

$ (39,144)

226

(352)

(6,81 7)

(46,087)

$ 4,3 10,085

6,500

I 6,860

62,000

$ 4,270,941

6,726

16,508

55, I 83

71,549

685,000

6,000

58,200

69,333

731,441

9,678

92,862

(2,216)

46,441

3,678

34,662

63,945

158,083

94,366

12,203

45

12,101

63,945

I 58,083

94,355

45

11,555

5,031

(11)

(12,203)

(546)

5,031

163,161 r 37,000 (26,161)

(33,890)503,904 470,014

s76,sss 496,229 (80,326)

10,000

r 5,060

2,513

59,210

(7,487)

44,150

25,060 61,723 36,663

446,415 384,3'14 (62,041)

6,768,128

71,200

$6,66s,012 $(r03,r r6)

$ 6,839,328
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SCHEDULE 2

TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEIY HAMPSHIRE
Mujor Ganeral Futtd

Schedule of Appropriations, Expendilurcs, nnd Encuntbrances (Non-GAAP Budgetaryt Bosis)

For the Fiscnl Yenr Euded Decemher 31, 2020

Encunrbered

f}om Prior'

Year Appropriations

Encumbered

to Subsequent

Expenditules Year

Variance

Positive

(Negative)

Current:

Genelal government:

Executive

Election and legistlat ion

Financial administrat ion

Revaluat ion of p ropcrty
Legal

Personnel adrninistration

Planning and zoning

General government buildings

Cemeteries

Insurance, not otherwise allocated

Advertising and regional associations

Other

Total general government

Public saf'ety:

Police

Fire

Emergency management

Other

Total public safety

I-lighway s and streets:

Administlation
Highways and streets

Bridges

Other

Total highways and streets

Sanitation:

Solid waste disposal

Health:

Administration
Pest control

Health agencies

Total health

Welfare:

Adrninistrat ion ancl direct assistance

Vendor paynrents and other

Total welf'are

Cult urc and lecreat ion:

Parks and recreation

Library

Patliotic purposr:s

Total culture and recreation

Conservat ion

$ 200,605 $

84,524

175,544

102,473

70,000

553,463

2s,902

249,400

250

48,717

1l,347
29,488

204,018 S

76,826

164,644

94,285

130,349
5t5 557

I 1,685

t'1q a)\
20

49,642

10,391

40, I 53

$$

13,000

(3.4 r 3)

7,698

10,900

8,1 88

(60,349)

t7,906
I,217

(20;790)

230
(e25)

956
( 1 0,665)

9,335

9,335 1,s51,713 1,597,095 13,000 (49,047)

1,21s,859

991,139

1,001

20,000

1,22'/,874

963,247

455

20,000

( 12,015)

27,892

546

2,227,999 2,211,5'76 16,423

542,866

413,263

500

30,000

s09,209

98,921

36,r31

266,230

33,657

48,112

500

(6,r3r)
986,629 644,261 266,230 76,138

346,762 304,889 4t,873

r 08,807

400

33,400

87,s66

95

33,400

21,241

305

142,607 121,061

I t,184
23,900

12,135

6,ilt

2t.s46

(e51)

t'|,789
35,084 18,246 16,838

t49,904
208,7 t9

46.640

t49,07 5

t99,948
30.507

6.400 (5,57 r )
8,7',l1

r6.r33
40s,263 379,530 6.400 19.333

3,562 r,140 2.422

35.937 40.937 (5.000)Economic development

6l

(Contintrccl)



SCHEDULE 2 (Continued)

TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE
MojorGenerol Fund

Schedule of Appt'opfiatious, Expenditures, nnd Encumbronces (Notr-GAAP Budgetory Bosis)

For the Fiscnl Year Etrded December 3I, 2020

Encurnbered

f}om Plior
Year Appropriations

Encumbered

to Subsequent

Expenditures Year

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

Debt service:

Principal of long-term debt

lnterest on long-term debt

Interest on taxanticipation notes

Total debt service

273,752

58,886

251

253,982

62,239

5,386

19,770

(3,3 53)

(5, r 35)

332,889 321,607 11"282

Capital outlay

Other financing uses

Transfers out

10,665 485,883 439,044 28,35l 29,153

285,000 382,591 (e7,591)

Total app rop riations, exp enditures,

other financinguses. and encumbrances $ 20,000 $ 6,839,328 $ 6,461,977 $ 313,981 $ 83,370
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SCHEDULE 3

TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEIY HAMPSHIRE
Major Genernl Fund

Schedule ofChanges in Unossigned Fund Balonce
For the Fiscol Yeor Ettded December 31, 2020

U nass igred fund balan ce. beginnin g (N on-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Changes:

Amounts voted from fund balance

2020 Budget summary:

Revenue shortfall (Schedule l)
Unexpended balance of appropriations (Schedule 2)

2020 Budget deficit

Decrease in nonspendable fund balance

Unassigned fund balance, ending (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Reconciliotiott ott Notr-GAAP Budgetnry Basis to GAAP Basis

To record def'erred property taxes not collected within 60 days of the

fiscal year-end. not recognized on a budgetary basis

Elimination of the allorvance for uncollectible taxes

Unassigned fund balance, ending GAAP basis (Exhibit C-1)

$ (103,1 16)

83,3 70

$ 886.85 r

(7 r,200)

(19.746)

7,204

803, I 09

(t66,262)

t 3 7,000

$773,847
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SCHEDULE 4

TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE
N o n mnj o r G ovem mental F u n ds

Combini ng Balance S heel

December 3 I, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

Police

Details

Capital

Pro.ject

Fund

M ulti-Use
Path

Permanent

FundLibrary

$ 57,83r

r 40-533

Total

$ 26,021

51,420

202,964

I 63,506

6,875

Transfer

Conservation Station

Other Special

Ambulance RevenueFunds
AS S ETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable

I ntergovernmental receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Interfund payable

FUND BAI.ANCES
Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

s 7,475 S 2,324

1,050

$ 3,06r $

22,960

$ 198,364 $ 8,525 S 2,324 $32,677 $ 123,041 $ 6,875 S 22,960 $ 56,020 $450,786

s32,677_

$

s r23,04r

$

6,875_ $ 56,020

51,420

4,600

$286,243
I 40,533

1,050

22,960

$

$ 22,960 $$ $

o\

198,364

5,464 2,324 32,677 123,041

6,87s
198,364 5,464 2,324 32,677 123,041 6,875 56,020 424,765

$ 198,364 $ 8,s25 $ 2,324 532,677 $ 123,041 $ 6,875 S 22,960 $ 56,020 $450,786



SCHEDULE 5

TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

N o n majo r G ovent nu ntal Fu n ds

Conbining Schedule of Revenua, Expentlitures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 3 I, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

Police Transfer

Details Conservation Station

Cap ital

Project

Funds

Other Special Multi-Use

Ambulance Revenue Funds Path

Permanent

Fund Total

REVENTif,S

Charges fbr services

M iscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITI.]RTS

Current:

General government

Public sal'ety

Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deticiency ) of revenues

over (under) exp end it ures

OTHER FINANCING SOTIRCES (I"]SES)

Transf'ers in

Transtbrs out

Total other tinancing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit), beginning

Fund balances, ending

29,045 4s,928

33,796

t2,640

t2,640 33,796

16,405 t2,t32 8 27 60,252 307

2t'I

l 3,593

217 13,593 465 60,71I

(13,593) (r82) 75,3s6

Library

$

29,045

$45,868 $

60 8 27

8

$ 60,000 $

252

$ s $

283

$ r 05,868

30, I 99

283 t36,06'727 60,252

524

524

465 465

34,013

12,640

I 3,593

( r 0,000)

( r 0,000)

16,405 2,132 8 27

I 81,959 3,332 2,316 32,650

$ 19s364 $ 5,464 S 2,3U $32,6n

60,252

62;789

57, l 98

57, I 98

43,605

(43,605)

(r82)

56,202

57, I 98

( r 0,000)

47,t98

122,554

302,2|

307

6,568

$ 123,04r $ 6,875 $ $56,020 $424,765



SCHEDULE 6
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Cusodial Futtds
Combining Schedule of Fiducitry Net Positiott

December 31 , 2020

ASSRTS
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES
Intergovernmental p ay ables

School

NETPOSITION
Restricted

Custodial Funds

Taxes Trust Funds Esct'ows Total

$2,984,586 $ 220,r01 $ $3,204,687

2,984,s86 2,984,586

$ 220,101 $ s 220,10r$
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SCHEDULE 7

TOIYN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Custodinl Funds

Combining Schetlule of Chottges in FiduciflrJ, Net Posilion
For the Fi scnl Year En ded Decenrber 3 1, 2020

Custodial Funds

Taxes Trust Funds Escrows Total
ADDITIONS

Contributions

Investment earnings

Tax collections for other governments

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Payments for trust purposes

Payments oftaxes to other governments

Payments for escrow purposes

Total deductions

Change in net position
Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

6,979,679

6,979,679 70t,2s7 1 7,680,937

500,000 500,000

6,979,679

122

6,979,679

122

6,979,679 500,000 122 7,479,801

$ $ 700,000

I,257
s 700,000

I,258

6,979,679

$

201.257

r 8,844

(121) 201,136

121 18,965

$ - $ 220,10t$ $ 220,101
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mernbers of the Board of Selectmen
Town of Bristol
Bristol, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards

applicable to the financial audits contained in Governntent Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the govemmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate

remaining fund information of the Town of Bristol, as of and for the year ended December 31,2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Bristol's basic financial statements, and have issued our repoft
thereon dated Septernber 1 ,2021 .

Internul Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Bristol's internal control over
financial repofting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Bristol's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town of Bristol's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or etnployees, in the

normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination or deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet impoftant enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identif all deficiencies in internal control that rnight be rnaterial weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these

limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be rnaterial weaknesses.

l-lowever, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance cmd Otlter Matters

As parl of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Bristol's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its cornpliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,

noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial staternents. However, providing an opinion
on cornpliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reporled under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an

integral part of an audit perforrned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this cornmunication is not suitable for any other p

n.0at, o'pn

IK & SANDERSONSepternber 1,2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen
Town of Bristol
Bristol, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Enclr Major Federnl Progrnnt

We have audited the Town of Bristol's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described inthe OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Town of Bristol's major federal program for the year ended
Decernber 31,2020. The Town of Bristol's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Mnn ag ement's Responsib ility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards
applicable to its federal programs.

A utlitor's Respo ns ib ility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Town of Bristol's rnajor federal program based on our audit of
the types of compliance requirements refered to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adntini.slrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirentents for
Federal Awards (Uniforrn Guidance). Those standards and the Uniforrn Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements refered to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occured. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the Town of Bristol's compliance with those requirements and perforrning such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for oul opinion on cornpliance for the major federal program. However, our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town of Bristol's cornpliance.

Opinion on Eaclt Mnjor Federol Progrant

In our opinion, the Town of Bristol cornplied, in all rnaterial respects, with the types of compliance requirements refered to above
that coufd have a direct and material effect on its major federal prograln for the year ended December 31,2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Complionce

Management of the Town of Bristol is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over cornpliance
with the types of cornpliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and perfonning our audit of compliance, we considered
the Town of Bristol's internal control over cornpliance with the types of requirernents that could have a direct and material effect
on the nrajor federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on cornpliance for the major federal prograrn and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal contlol
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Bristol's internal control over
cornpliance.
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Towtr of Brislol
Irulependent Auditor's Report on Contplinnce Jbr Ench Mnjor Federnl Progrant and report on Internol

Control over Complitnce Rerluired by the Uniform Guitlunce

A deficiency in internal control over contpliance exists when the design or operation of a control over cornpliance does not allow
management or ernployees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal pl'ogram on a timely basis. A material v,eakness in internal
control over contpliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over cotnpliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncornpliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be

prevented, or detected and corrected, on a tirnely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over contpliance is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over cornpliance with a fype of compliance requirement of a

federal program that is less severe than a rnaterial weakness in internal control over compliance, yet impoltant enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our considelation of internal control over cornpliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be rnaterial weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over cornpliance that we consider to be rnaterial
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses rnay exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this repolt on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over cornpliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is

not suitable for any other purpose.

5l,^6{n Qt em
September 1,2021 PLODZIK & SANDERSON

Professional Association
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SCHEDULE I
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule o.f Findittgs and Questioned Costs

For tlte Yeor Ended December 31, 2020

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Stalements

Type of reporl the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:
I Inrnodified

Internal control over financial leporting:

o Material weakness(es) identified?

r Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statelnents noted?

Federal Awurds

Internal control over major programs:

r Material weakness(es) identified?

o Significantdeficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's repoft issued on compliance for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs;

CFDA Number(s)

yes

yes

yes

Xno

X none reported

Xno

yes X no

yes X none repofted

Unrnodified

ves X no

Name of Federal Prograrl or Cluster

21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and
type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$7s0,000

yes X no

SECTION II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

NONB

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

NONB
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SCHEDULE II
TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule qfExpenditures of Federal Avurds
For tlte Yesr Ended Decenfter 31, 2020

Federal G rant or/Pass-Through

Grantor/Prog'am or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA
Number

Pass-Througlr

Entity
Identify ing

Number

Provided to
Subrecip ients

Federal

.Exp enditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR)

COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund:

First Responder Stipend

Municipal Aid

Passed Through the State of New Flampshire

Governor's Office of Strategic lnitiatives

Emergency Broadband Exp ansron

PROGRAM TOTAL

U.S. ELECTION AS S ISTANCE COMMIS S ION

Passed Through the New Hampshire

Secretary of State's Office

COVID-19 - HAVA Election Security Grants

Tottrl Expendilures of Federol Aworuls

21.019

2t.0t9

21.019

N/A
N/A

N/A

$ $ s8,000

74,086

1,592,000

1,724,086

90.404 NH20t01CARES

The accornpanying notes are an integral part ofthis schedule.
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TOWN OF BRISTOL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2O2O

Note 1, Basis of Presentutiott

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal grant activity of the Town
ofBristol underprograrnsofthefederal governmentfortheyearendedDecernber3l,2020. TheinformationinthisScheduleis
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code oJ' Federal Regulatiors Part 200, Unifornt Adntinistrative
Requirentents, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements .for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Town of Bristol, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Town of Bristol.

Note 2. Summary of SigniJicont Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reporled on the rnodified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are

recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein ceftain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in
the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditules in prior years.

Note 3. Indirect Cost Rate

The Town of Bristol has elected not to use the l0-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Unifonn Guidance.
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